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Committed to the Alission

To maximize shareholder value as an
independent community bank.

To provide superior customer products and
services to the communities we serve.

To create a rewarding environment
that offers equal opportunity to all
employees, while maintaining integrity and
professionalism.

To provide leadership, which will help
improve the quality of life for the citizens of
the communities we serve,
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
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% are pleased to report on your company’s performance in 2007, In the pages that follow, you can
review a detailed discussion and analysis of the year, but first we would like to share with you our
thoughts on several key areas including profitability, asset quality, long-term growth and cash dividends.

During 2007, First Pulaski National Corporation reported a net income of $5,452,690, representing a
3.30% increase over the previous year. We consider this increase in profitability exceptional given the
banking industry, as a whole, reported a 24.7% reduction in earnings. We are likewise pleased with the
growth in total assets to over $529 million. As reported in the media, we are in the midst of some very
difficult economic times, with many financial institutions having significant problems within their loan
portfolios. First National Bank has been fortunate to have maintained a consistent policy of prudent
loan underwriting with a view toward long-term growth and profitability as opposed to seeking short-
term profits by taking exceptional risks. These actions resulted in net charged-off loans equal to only
0.09% of average loans outstanding. This is the best performance in over a decade. As a result of the
sound asset quality and solid financial performance, First Pulaski National Corporation paid a cash
dividend of $1.80 per share or 7.14% higher than that paid in 2006. This cash dividend was equivalent
to 51.28% of net profits.

While we are pleased with the 2007 financial performance, we believe the most significant event of
2007 was our preparation for expansion into the North Alabama market arga. In June, the Governor
of the State of Alabama signed legislation permitting banks domiciled in Tennessee to establish full
service banking offices in Alabama. First National Bank was positioned and ready to move forward
with this opportunity and in July became the first bank in Tennessee to apply for an application to open
an office across the state line. Our first office 13 now open in the Commerce Center in Huntsville and
we have been approved to open our second office in Athens, Alabama. The projections for economic
growth driven by the defense and high tech industries of Huntsville, Alabama place the region we serve
as one of the more promising areas for economic growth in the nation. We are excited about the future
prosperity to be achieved and we recognize the startup cost of these new offices will prove to be an
investment that will improve the company’s long-term profitability and enhance shareholder value.

2007 has been an exceptional year for First National Bank and First Pulaski National Corporation. We
have enjoyed consistent asset growth, increased profitability and some of the most promising expansion
opportunities in the company’s history. This success would not be possible without the resolve and
dedication of the most important asset of this organization, the team of professionals working each day
to provide superior service to our customers. The commitment of the employees and your support as
shareholders are the two most important ingredients to ensure the long-term success of this company.
We appreciate your support and the business you give First National Bank.

Sincerely,
ames T. Cox Mark A. Hayes

Chairman of the Board President and CEQ
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COMMITMENT TO THE MIsSSION
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Front Row: Left to Right: Bill Yancey, James T. Cox, Linda Lee Rogers, Mark A. Hayes,
James H. Butler. Back Row: James K. Blackburn IV, Wade Boggs, Gregory G. Dugger,
Charles D. Haney, R. Whitney Stephens, David Bagley.

Donald A. Haney,
Chief Operating Officer

------

L Mark A. Hayes,
. President & Chief Executive Officer

James T. Cox,
Chairman of the Board

Tracy L. Porterfield,
Cashier & Chief Financial Officer

Cunder the leadership of strong professionals standing on the principles of its founding fathers, First
National Bank embraces a broad vision for the future. That vision is centered on the community bank
evolving in response to new technology and the demands of the customer. The “can do” attitude

of this leadership and their desire for “being here and staying here” builds confidence in our
shareholders as we boldly challenge our future.
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?{elping customers meet their financial goals is a large part of superior service and the most
satisfying part of our jobs. If global banking, home buying or estate planning are a part of your
financial objectives, our experienced and helpful professionals are committed to you.
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@ur organization believes that the pursuit of excellence is the
single most important attribute that an employee of First
National Bank can possess. In his role as Chairman of the
Board, Jimmy Cox stands in front of all the employees in this
pursuit of excellence. Because of his excellent example, the
2007 Cox and Curry award could only belong to him.
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-~ %td  Front Row: Left to Right: James I. Greene, Linda Lee

B Rogers, Faye Robinson, Debbie Braden and Karen
Cardin Spivey. Second Row: Lyman Brown, Eugene
Morris, Robert H. Wynne, Mitchell Birdsong, David
Rackley and Donnie Moore. Not pictured: Ken
Coleman and Rod Wells

Front Row: Left to Right: Harold Seals, David Bagley,
Curtis Ashby, Larry Stewart and Micky Lawson.
Not Pictured: Richard Barrett, Robert Clark, John
Meadows, Fred Ralston, Walter Szelich, Terry Monks
and deceased member, Claudia Donalson (2007).

Front Row: Left to Right: John Curtis, Gearil Smith,
Thomas Rochelle, Wade Boggs, Scotty Faulk and
Nick Holland. Second Row: J.B. Tumer, Jr., John
Smith, Lee King and James H. Butler.

Front Row: Left to Right: Sam Kirby, Kristen Gold,

Millie Miller, Mary Ann Roberts, Joe Harris and
David Craig. Second Row: Steve McPherson,
Tommy McAdams, Joe Moss and Lee Morrison.
Not pictured: Jerry Beech

Center Front: Joyce Chaffin. Front Row: Left to Right:

William McNairy, W.E. Walters, Kenneth Lowry,
Johnny Bevill. Back Row: Rand Hayes, William
Miitlesteadt, Morris Ed Harwell and John Norton.
Not pictured;: W.H. Murrey
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Student Advisory Boards

Front Row: Left to Right;: Katherine Worsham, Laken Smith,
Melissa Mefford, Sara Elizabeth Cardin, John Wong.
2nd Row: Lindsey Lochridge, Jordan Wheeler, Megan
McNeese, Whit Carter. 3rd Row: Christine Horn, Casi
Blade, Peyton Newton, Rob Holley, Matt Baxter.
4th Row: Jason Ogg, Trevan Locke, Patrick
Hollandsworth, Justin McNeese.

Front Row: Left to Right: Marlayna Pepper, Danielle Scott, Catherine
Sullivan. 2nd Row: Ali Brislin, Kayla Shull, Melanie Singleton.
3rd Row: Tricia Steelman, Julia Filer, 4th Row: Cassie Putman,
Jerianne Towry, Sarah Perkins. 5th Row: Rachel Powelson, Sam
Ashby. Top Row: Paul Guerin, Ryan Kent.

Q»&«ﬁw' Front Row: Left to Right: Matt Davis, Blake Everett,

Grace Hofmann, Ja’Lisa Hightower, Beth Gamble,
Sara Barnett, Nikki Swartwood. 2nd Row: Kristian
Albarran, Connie Nichols, Kaitlyn Hunter,
Margaret Bishop, Gaby Bussell, Brittney Dickens,
Veronica Schultz. Back Row: Kristein Mason,
Jacob Crowell, Caitlin Tindell, Lauren March,
Tyler Cole, Seth Isley.

Front Row: Left to Right: Landria Curtis, Emily Taylor,
Whitley Gates. 2nd Row: Alisha Mitchell, Megan Pressnell,
Casey Steadman. 3rd Row: Matt Lannom, Julian Threet,
Ryan McMunn. Top Row: Claude Bridges IV, Jordan Angus,
Landon Curtis.
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Report of Management on the Company’s
Internal Control over Financial Reporting

March 7, 2008

Management of First Pulaski National Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records, that, in reasonable detail, accuratcly
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statemnents in accordance with gencrally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures are made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors; and {3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. A
control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the
objectives of the control system are met. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of
controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods arc subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of change in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures may
deteriorate.

Management of First Pulaski National Corporation, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer, has assessed the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria
for effective internal control over financial reporting described in “Internal Control - Integrated Framework” issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management has
concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was cffective as of December 31, 2007, based on
the specified criteria.

Crowe Chizek and Company L1C, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal controls over financial reporting as stated in their report which is included herein.

Mark A. Hayes Tracy Porterfield
President & Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Crowe Chizek and Company LLC
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Audit Committec
First Pulaski National Corporation
Pulaski, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of First Pulaski National Corporation and subsidiary
(“Company”) as of December 31, 2007 and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in sharcholders’
equity, and cash flows for the year then ended. We also have audited the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, based an criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQO). The Company’s
management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reportiny,
included in the accompanying Report of Management on the Company’s Internal Control over Financial Reporting.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits. The consolidated financial statements of
First Pulaski National Corporation and subsidiary as of December 31, 2006 and for the two year period ended
December 31, 2006, were audited by other auditors whose report dated February 22, 2007, expressed an unqualified
opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal
contro] over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of the consolidated financial
statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and tesling and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.




In our opinion, the 2007 consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of First Pulaski National Corporation and subsidiary as of December 31, 2007 and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission (COS0).
( :‘m e CLiut awﬂ GTN\ AR

Crowe Chizek and Company LLC

Brentwood, Tennessee
March 7, 2008
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PUTMAN & HANCOCK
Certified Public Accountants

219 East Callege Street 109 South First Street
P.0O. Box 722 P.O. Box 724
Fayenevillte, Tennessee 37334 Pulaski, Tennessee 38478
(931) 433-1040 (931) 424-1049
Fax {931) 4339290 Fax (931)-363.5222

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Stockholders and Board of Directors
First Pulaski National Corporation
Pulaski, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of First Pulaski National Corporation and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders'
equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2006. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Corporation's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonablé basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of First Pulaski National Corporation and subsidiarics as of December 31,
2006, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the
period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America.

Fayetteville, Tennessce
February 22, 2007




FIRST PULASK] NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2007 and 2006
ASSETS

Cash and due from banks
Federal funds sold
Total cash and cash equivalents

Interest bearing balances with banks
Securities available for sale

Loans
Loans held for sale
Loans net of unearned income
Allowance for loan losses
Total net loans

Bank premises and equipment
Accrued interest receivable
Other real ¢state owned

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock
Company-owned life insurance
Prepayments and other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Deposits:
Noninterest bearing
Interest bearing
Total deposits

Securities sold under repurchase agreements
Other borrowed funds

Accrued taxes

Accrued interest on deposits

Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, $1 par value; authorized - 10,000,000 shares;
1,546,551 and 1,565,442 shares issued and outstanding, respectively
Capital surplus
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2007 2006
$ 11,297,523 $ 10,976,881
16,069,000 17,998,000
27,366,523 28,974 881
529,567 1,557,371
153,900,040 147,191,472
559,100 418,260
321,070,794 280,398,201
(3,467,019) (3,473,143)
318,162,875 277,343,318
11,948,764 11,581,191
4,862,241 4,174,160
671,911 663,611
1,467,100 1,467,100
8,268,688 7,774,350
2,762,886 3,360,866

$ 526,940,595

$ 484,088,320

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

§ 59,298,488 $ 62,308,280
409,709,711 364,166,299
469,008,199 426,474,579

1,726,486 1,409,107
3,639,592 3,874,217
417,263 196,152
3,030,415 2,860,599
2,485,615 2,211,624
480,307,570 437,026,278
1,546,551 1,565,442
162,553 481,878
47,530,792 45,645,046
393,129 (630,324)
49,633,025 47,062,042

$ 529,940,595

§ 484,088,320




FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

2007 2006 2005
INTEREST INCOME
Loans, including fecs $ 26,453314 $ 23,268,902 $ 20,429,662
Securities:
Taxable 3,936,960 2,878,898 2,500,117
Non-taxable 2,645,895 2,325,123 2,187,917
Federal funds sold 445,785 443983 194,040
Interest on deposits in other banks 17,375 19,982 7,566
Total Interest Income 33,499,329 28,936,888 25,319,302
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on deposits:
Transaction accounls 512,002 370,046 313,321
Moeney market deposit accounts 1,145,429 1,137,489 986,616
Other savings deposits 253,830 280,026 300,084
Time certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more 8,187,657 6,215,412 4,154,393
All other time deposits 6,408,043 4,839,090 3,370,354
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 65,362 29,806 -
Other borrowed funds 205,008 208,899 246,381
Total Interest Expense 16,777,331 13,080,768 9,371,149
NET INTEREST INCOME 16,721,998 15,856,120 15,948,153
Provision for loan losses 261,391 175,468 600,942
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION
FOR LOAN LOSSES 16,460,607 15,680,652 15,347,211
NON-INTEREST INCOME
Service charges on deposit accounts 2,397,211 2,332,817 2,267,590
Commissions and fees 428,972 457,119 498,915
Other service charges and fees 401,310 345916 329,898
Income on company-owned life insurance 259,237 220,143 203,113
Security gains, net - - 16,145
Gains (losses) on sale or write-downs of other assets, net 26,529 112,788 (23,782)
Dividends and other income 284,187 153,124 138,197
Mortgage banking income 447,803 490,397 514,012
Total Non-interest Income 4,245,249 4,112,304 3,944 038
NON-INTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries and employee benefits 7,812,091 7,420,905 7,145,073
Occupancy expense, net 1,321,113 1,273,088 1,162,751
Furniture and equipment expense 757,050 765,765 855,482
Advertising and public relations 634,833 645,301 614,139
Other operating expenses 2,866,940 2,543,836 2,483,543
Total Non-interest Expenses 13,392,027 12,648,895 12,260,988
Income before income taxes 7,313,829 7,144,061 7,030,311
Applicable income tax expense 1,861,139 1,865,324 1,772,601
NET INCOME £ 5,452,690 $ 5278737 £ 5257710
Earnings per common share:
Basic b 3.51 3 3.36 $ 3.29
Diluted £ 3.50 3 3.35 5 3.28

The accompanying notes are an integral par! of these financial statemenis.




FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities-
Provision for loan losses
Depreciation
Amortization and accretion of investment securities, net
Deferred income tax benefit
{Gain) loss on sale or write-downs of other assets
Security gains, net
Stock-based compensation expense
Loans originated for sale
Proceeds from sale of loans
Gain on the sale of loans
Tax benefit arising from exercise of director common stock options
Increase in cash surrender value of company-owned life insurance
(Increase) decrease in interest receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepayments and other assets
Increase in accrued interest on deposits
Increase {decrease) in accrued taxes
Increase in other liabilities

Cash Provided by Operating Activities, net

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of securities available for sale
Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale
Proceeds from maturities of securities available for sale
(Increase) decrease in interest bearing balances with banks
Purchase of company-owned life insurance
Net increase in loans
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sale of other assets

Cash Used by Investing Activities, net

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from borrowings
Borrowings repaid
Net increase in securities sold under repurchase agreements
Net increase in deposits
Cash dividends paid
Praceeds from exercise of stock options, inctuding tax benefit
Proceeds from issuance of commoen stock
Common stock repurchased

Cash Provided by Financing Activities, net

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH, net
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financizl statements.
Supplemental cash flow information

Interest paid
Income taxes paid

Supplemental noncash disclosures
Transfers from loans to real estate owned

2007 2006 2005
$ 5,452,690 $ 5,278,737 $ 5,257,710
261,391 175,468 600,942
792,005 793,823 878,410
305,421 400,464 466,895
(225,274) (64,315) (337,907
(26,529) (112,788) 23,782
- - (16,145)
28,760 - -
(16,389,236) (18,998,828) (18,956,065)
16,248,396 19,112,848 18,926,635
(447,803) (490,397) (514,012)
(9,358) (6,560) (32,737)
(259,238) (220,143) (203,113)
(688,081) (654,668) 111,405
201,053 (498,591) 83,651
169,816 704,682 910,802
221,111 128,889 (223,627)
273,991 306,059 209,346
5,909,115 5,854,680 7,185,972
(73,636,885) (41,286,553) (20,031,735)
- ; 2,241,520
68,277,908 28,957,830 17,075,899
1,027,804 (1,227,553) (118,713)
(235,100) (754,100) (5,283,100)
(40,990,073) (8,101,121} (17,617,311)
(1,159,705) (2,127,131) (1,625,282)
516,124 703,360 2,797,444
(46,199,927) (23,835,268) (22,561,278}
- - 3,500,000
(234,625) (221,935) (3,739,212)
317,379 1,409,107 -
42,533,620 29,062,800 24,011,111
(2,796,233) (2,637,790) (2,629,752)
165,978 102,579 172,438
125,070 . -
(1,428,735) (1,270,250) (2,209,880)
38,682,454 26,444,511 19,104,705
(1,608,358) 8,463,923 3,729,399
28,974 881 20,510,958 16,781,559
$ 27,366,523 $ 28,974,881 $ 20,510,958
$ 16,607,515 $ 12,376,834 $ 8,460,347
1,642,392 2,072,431 2,293,089
497,768 210,436 967,586




FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Accumulated

Other
Commoen Stock Capital Reuained Comprehensive
Shares Amoynt Surplus Eamings Income (Loss), net Tatal

Balance at December 31, 2604 1,627,460 § 1627460 § 3,664,270 % 40,376,141 § 293,058 § 45960929
Comprehensive income:

Net income - - - 5,257,710 - 5,257,710

Change in unrealized

gains (losses) on AFS

securities, net of tax - - - . (1,773,033) {1,773,033)

Less reclassification

adjustment, net of income

tax of $5,489 - - - - 10,656 10,656
Comprehensive income 3,495,333
Cash dividends paid $1.65

per share - - - (2,629,752) - (2,629,752)
Exercise of stock options 4,504 4,504 135,197 - - 139,701
Connon stock repurchased (44,500) {44,500) (2,165,380) - - {2,209.,880)
Balance at December 31, 2005 1,587,464 1,587,464 1,634,087 43,004,095 (1,469,319) 44,756,331
Comprehensive income:

Net income - - - 5,278,737 - 5,278,737

Change n unrealized

gains (losses) on AFS

securities, net of tax - - - . 838,995 838,995
Comprehensive income 6,117,732
Cash dividends paid $1.68

per share - - - (2,637,790) - (2,637,790)
Exercise of stock options 3,383 3,383 92,636 - - 96,019
Common stock repurchased (25,405) {25,405) (1,244 845) - - (1,270,250)
Batance at December 31, 2006 1,565,442 1,565,442 481,878 45,645,046 (630,324) 47,062,042
Comprehensive income: B

Net income - - - 5,452,690 - 5,452,690

Change in unrealized

gains (losses) on AFS

securitics, net of tax - - - - 1,023,453 1,023,453
Comprehensive income 6,476,143
Cash dividends paid $1.80

per share - - - (2,796,233) - (2,796,233)
Compensation expense for

restricied stock - - 28,760 - - 28,760
Tax benefit arising from exercise

of director stock options - - 9,358 - - 9,358
Exercise of stock options 4,812 4812 151,808 - - 156,620
Issuance of new stock 2,274 2,274 122,796 - - 125,070
Common stock repurchased (25.977) (25,977) (632,047) (770,711) - (1,428,735)
Balance at December 31, 2007 1,546,551 § 1,546,551 § 162,553 % 47,530,792 § 393,129 % 49,633,025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

- I
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations and Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include First Pulaski National
Corporation (the "Corporation”) and its wholly owned subsidiary, First National Bank of Pulaski (the "Bank"}, as well as the
Bank's wholly owned subsidiary First Pulaski Reinsurance Company ("FPRC"), together referred to as “the Company.”
Intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation. :

The Company provides financial services through its offices in Giles, Lincoln and Marshall Counties in Tennessee. lts primary
deposit products are checking, savings, and term certificate accounts, and its primary lending products are residential mortgage,
commercial, and installment loans. Substantially all loans are secured by specific items of .collateral including business assets,
consumer asscts, and commercial and residential real estate. Commercial loans are expected to be repaid from cash flow from
operations of businesses. There are no significant concentrations of loans to any one industry or customer. However, the
customers’ ability to repay their loans is dependent on the real estate and general economic conditions in the area.

Use of Estimates: To prepare financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generaily accepted in the United
States of America (or with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles) management makes estimates and assumptions based
on available information. These estimates and assumptions affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the
disclosures provided, and actual results could differ. The allowance for loan losses and fair values of financial instruments are
particularly subject to change.

Cash Flows: Cash and cash equivalents includes cash, deposits with other financial institutions with maturities under 90 days,
and federal funds sold. Net cash flows are reported for customer loan and deposit transactions, interest bearing deposits in other
financial institutions, and federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements.

Interest-Bearing Deposits in Other Financial Institutions: Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions mature within
one year and are carried at cost.

Securities: Debt securities are classified as held to maturity and carried at amortized cost when management has the positive
intent and ability to hold them to maturity. Debt securities are classified as available for sale when thcy might be sold before
maturity. Equity securities with readily determinable fair values are classified as available for sale. Securities available for sale
are carried at fair value, with unrealized holding gains and losses reported in other comprehensive income, net of tax.

Interest income includes amortization of purchase premium or discount. Premiums and discounts on securities are amortized on
the level-yield method with premiums amortized to the call date, if applicable, and discounts amortized to maturity date.
Prepayments are anticipated in the amortization of premiums and discounts for mortgage backed securities. Gains and losses on
sales are recorded on the trade date and determined using the specific identification method.

Declines in the fair value of sccurities below their cost that are other than temporary are reflected as realized losses. In estimating
other-than-temporary losses, management considers: the length of time and extent that fair value has been less than cost, the
financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer, and the Company’s ability and intent to hold the security for a period
sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

Loans: Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foresceable future or until maturity or payofT are reported
at the principal balance outstanding, net of unearned interest, deferred loan fees and costs, and an allowance for loan losses.
Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are
deferred and recognized in interest income using a method to approximate the level-yicld method.

Interest income on loans is discontinucd-at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the loan is well-secured and in process
of collection. Past due status is based on the contractual terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual or
charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not received for loans placed on nonaccrual is reversed against interest income. Interest received on such
loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to
accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractuaily due are brought current and future payments are
reasonably assured.

Mortgage Banking: The Corporation originates first-lien mortgage loans for the purpose of selling them in the secondary market.
Mortgage loans held for sale arc recorded at cost, which approximates market value. Gains and losses realized from the sale of
these assets are included in noninterest income. Servicing rights related to the mortgages sold are not retained. Loans include
loans held for sale at December 31, 2007 and 2006, totaling $559,100 and $418,260, respectively.
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (CONTINUED)

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for probable incurred credit losses. Loan
losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed.
Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. Management estimates the allowance batance required using past
loan loss experience, the nature and volume of the portfolio, information about specific borrower situations and estimated
collateral values, economic conditions, and other factors. Allocations of the allowance may be made for specific loans, but the
entire allowance is available for any loan that, in management’s judgment, should be charged off,

The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific component relates to loans that are individually
classified as impaired or loans otherwise classified as substandard or doubtful. The general component covers non-classified
loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for current factors.

A loan is impaired when full payment under the loan terms is not expected. Commercial and commercial real estate loans over
$250,000 are individually evaluated for impairment. If a loan is impaired, a portion of the allowance is aliocated so that the loan
is reported, net, at the present value of estimated future cash flows using the loan’s existing rate or at the fair value of collateral if
repayment is expected solely from the collateral. Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans, such as consumer and
residential real estate loans, are collectively evaluated for impairment, and accordingly, they are not separately identified for
impairment disclosures.

Transfers of Financial Assets: Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales, when control over the assets has been
relinquished. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when the assets have been isolated from the Company,
the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the
transferred assets, and the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to
repurchase them before their maturity.

Foreclosed Assets: Assets acquired through or instead of loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less costs to sell
when acquired, establishing a new cost basis. If fair value declines subsequent to foreclosure, a valuation allowance is recorded
through expense. Operating costs after acquisition are expensed.

Premises and Equipment: Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Buildings and related components are depreciated using the straight-line and accelerated methods with useful lives ranging from 5
to 39 years. Furniture, fixtures and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line and accelerated method with useful lives
ranging from 3 to 7 years.

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) Stock: The Bank is a member of the FHLB system. Members are required to own a certain
amount of stock based on the level of borrowings and other factors, and may invest in additional amounts. FHLB stock is carried
at cost, classified as a restricted security, and periodically evaluated for impairment based on ultimate recovery of par value. Both
cash and stock dividends are reported as income.

Company Owned Life Insurance: The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain directors and key executives.
Upon adoption of EITF 06-5, which is discussed further below, Company owned life insurance is recorded at the amount that can
be realized under the insurance contract at the balance sheet date, which is the cash surrender value adjusted for other charges or
other amounts due that are probable at settlement. Prior to adoption of EITF 06-5, the Company recorded owned life insurance at
its cash surrender value.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Emerging Issues Task Force finalized Issue No. 06-5,
Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance - Determining the Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordance with FASB
Technical Bulletin No. 85-4 (Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance)("Issue”). This Issue requires that a policyholder
consider contractual terms of a life insurance policy in determining the amount that could be realized under the insurance
contract. It also requires that if the contract provides for a greater surrender value if all individual policies in a group are
surrendered at the same time, that the surrender value be determined based on the assumption that policies will be surrendered on
an individual basis. Lastly, the Issue requires disclosure when there are contractual restrictions on the Company’s ability to
surrender a policy. The adoption of EITF 06-5 on January 1, 2007 had no impact on the Company’s financial condition or results
of operation. :

Long-Term Assets: Premises and equipment, and other long-term assets are reviewed for impairment when events indicate their
carrying amount may not be recoverable from future undiscounted cash flows. If impaired, the assets are recorded at fair value.
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (CONTINUED)

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments: Financial instruments include off-balance sheet credit instruments, such
as commitments to make loans and commercial letters of credit, issued to meet customer financing needs. The face amount for
these items represents the exposure to loss, before considering customer collateral or ability to repay. Such financial instruments
are recorded when they are funded.

Stock-Based Compensation: Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS™) No. 123(R), Share-based Payment, using the modified prospective transition method. Accordingly, the Company has
recorded stock-based employee compensation cost using the fair value method starting in 2006.

Priot to January 1, 2006, employee compensation expense under stock options was reported using the intrinsic value method;
therefore, no stock-based compensation cost is reflected in net income for the year ended December 31, 2005, as all options
granted had an exercise price equal to or greater than the market price of the underlying common stock at date of grant.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if expense was measured using the fair value
recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123(R), Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, for the year ended December
31, 2005:

Net income as reported $ 5,257,710
Deduct: Stock based compensation expense
determined under fair value based method 25,514
$ 5,232,196
Basic earnings per share as reported $ 3.29
Pro-forma basic earnings per share 3.28
Diluted earnings per share as reported 3.28
Pro-forma diluted earnings per share 3.26

Income Taxes: Income tax expense is the total of the current year income tax due or refundable and the change in deferred tax
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the expected future tax amounts for the temporary differences between
carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities, computed using enacted tax rates. A valuation allowance, if needed,
reduces deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized.

The Company adopted FASB Interpretation 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (“FIN 487), as of January 1, 2007.
A tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is "more likely than not" that the tax position would be sustained in a tax
examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit that is
greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions not meeting the "more likely than not” test, no tax
benefit is recorded. The adoption had no effect on the Company’s financial statements.

The Company recognizes interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.

Retirement Plans: Employee profit sharing plan expense is the amount contributed by the Company. Deferred compensation and
supplemental retirement plan expense allocates the benefits over years of service. The present value of future benefits to be paid
is being accrued over the period from the effective date of the agreements until the full cligibility date.

Earnings Per Common Share: Basic carnings per common share is nel income divided by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period.  Diluted earnings per common share include the dilutive effect of additional
potential common shares issuable under stock options as well as restricted common stock.

Comprehensive Income: Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive
income includes unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale which are also recognized as separate components of
equity.

Loss Contingencies: Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business, are
recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be reasonably estimated.
Management does not believe there now are such matters that will have a material effect on the financial statements.

Restrictions on Cash: Cash on hand or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank was required to meet regulatory reserve and
clearing requirements, These balances do not earn interest,
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (CONTINUED)
Dividend Restriction: Banking regulations require maintaining certain capital levels and may limit the dividends paid by the bank
to the holding company or by the holding company to sharcholders.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: Fair values of financial instruments are ¢stimated using relevant market information and
other assumptions, as more fully disclosed in a separate note. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant
judgment regarding interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and other factors, especially in the absence of broad markets for
particular items. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the estimates,

Operating Segments: While the chief decision-makers monitor the revenue streams of the various products and services,
operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated on a Company-wide basis. Operating segments are aggregated
into one as operating results for all segments are similar. Accordingly, ali of the financial service operations are considered by
management to be aggregated in one reportable operating segment.

Reclassifications: Some items in the prior year financial statements were reclassified to conform to the current presentation.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards: [n February 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments (“SFAS No. 155"), which permits fair value remeasurement for hybrid
financial instruments that contain an embedded derivative that otherwise would require bifurcation. Additionally, SFAS No., 155
clarifies the accounting guidance for beneficial interests in securitizations. Under SFAS No. 155, all beneficial interests in a
securitization will require an assessment in accordance with SFAS No. 133, dccounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities to determine if an embedded derivative exists within the instrument. In January 2007, the FASB issued Derivatives
Implementation Group Issue B40, Application of Paragraph 13(b) to Securitized Interests in Prepavable Financial Assets (“DIG
Issue B40™). DIG Issue B40 provides an exemption from the embedded derivative test of paragraph 13(b) of SFAS No. 133 for
instruments that would otherwise require bifurcation if the test is met solely because of a prepayment feature included within the
securitized interest and prepayment is not contrelled by the security holder. SFAS No. 155 and DIG Issue B40 are effective for
fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 155 and DIG Issue B40 did not have a material
impact on the Company's consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Effect of Newly Issued But Not Yet Effective Accounting Standards: In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair
Value Measurements (“SFAS No. 1577). SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy about the assumptions used
to measure fair value and clarifies assumptions about risk and the effect of a restriction on the sale or use of an asset. SFAS No.
157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company adopted SFAS No. 157 during 2008 and the
impact of adoption was not material.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Vaiue Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (“SFAS
No. 159”). 8FAS No. 159 provides companies with an option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value and
establishes presentation and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between companies that choose different
measurement attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 159 is etfective for the Company on January [, 2008,
The Company does not expect the impact of SFAS No. 159 to be material.

In September 2006, the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force finalized Issue No. 06-4, Accounting for Deferred Compensation and
Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance. Arrangements: This issue requires that a lability be
recorded during the service period when a split-dollar life insurance agreement continues after participants’ employment or
retirement.  The required accrued liability will be based on either the post-employment benefit cost for the continuing life
insurance or based on the future death benefit depending on the contractual terms of the underlying agreement. This issue is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007. The Company adopted this issue during 2008 and the impact of
adoption was not material.

On November 5, 2007, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 109, Written Loan Commitments Recorded ar Fair Value
through Earnings (“SAB 109”). Previously, SAB 105, Application of Accounting Principles to Loan Commitments, stated that in
measuring the fair value of a derivative loan commitment, a company should not incorporate the expected net future cash flows
related to the associated servicing of the loan. SAB 109 supersedes SAB 105 and indicates that the expected net future cash flows
related to the associated servicing of the loan should be included in measuring fair value for all written loan commitments that are
accounted for at fair value through earnings. SAB 105 also indicated that internally-developed intangible assets should not be
recorded as part of the fair value of a derivative loan commitment, and SAB 109 retains that view. SAB 109 is effective for
derivative loan commitments issued or modified in fiscal quarters beginning after December 15, 2007. The Company does not
expect the impact of this standard to be material.
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - SECURITIES
The fair value of available for sale securities and the related gross unrealized gains and losses recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) were as follows:

Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Unrealized
2007 Value Gains Losses
U.S. Government agencies $ 62,690,424 $ 552,254 g 37,522
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 81,779,053 416,775 212,706
Mortgage-backed securities 3,938,928 14,397 4,583
Other debt securities 3,468,690 1,206 94,614
Total debt securitics 151,877,095 984,632 349,425
Equity Securities 2,022,945 - -
Total $ 153,900,040 3 984,632 3 349,425
2006
U.S. Government agencies $ 67,682,018 g 40,213 $ 536,185
Obligations of states and
pelitical subdivisions 71,965,406 222,123 649,178
Mortgage-backed securitics 1,107,218 16,345 8,452
Other debt securities 6,436,830 6,249 110,922
Total $ 147,191,472 M 284,930 $ 1,304,737
Sales of available for sale securities were as follows:
2007 2006 2005
Proceeds 3 - b - $ 2,241,520
Gross gains - - 23,790
Gross losses - - 7,645

The tax benefit (provision) related to these net realized gains and losses was $0, 30, and $(5,489), respectively.

The fair value of debt securities and carrying amount, if different, at year end 2007 by contractual maturity were as follows.
Securities not due at a single maturity date, primarily mortgage-backed securities, are shown separately.

Available
for Sale

Fair Value
Due in one year or less $ 26,563,727
Due after one year through five years 72,707,695
Due after five years through ten years 45,848,683
Due afier ten years 2,818,062
Mortgage-backed 3,938,928

TOTAL

F 51877.095

Securities pledged at year-end 2007 and 2006 had a carrying amount of $77,196,555 and $72,246,015, respectively, and were
pledged to secure public deposits and repurchase agreements.

At year-end 2007 and 2006, there were no holdings of securities of any one issuer, other than U.S. government agencies and U.S.
government-sponsored agencies, in an amount greater than 10% of shareholders’ equity.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 —SECURITIES — (CONTINUED)
Securities with unrealized losses at year-end 2007 and 2006, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual
securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, are as follows:

2007
Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
Obligations of U.S. Government
Agencies $ 2,334,300 $ 700 $ 8,547,705 ¥ 36,822 $ 10,882,005 £ 37522
Obligations of States and
Political Subdivisions 3,827,384 23,460 24,399,266 189,246 28,226,650 212,706
Mortgage-backed securities - - 413,926 4,583 413,926 4,583
Corporate Bonds - - 2,966,590 94,614 2,966,590 94,614
Total Temporanly Impaired
Securities $ 6,161,684 $ 24,160 $36,327,487 $ 325265 § 42.489,171 $ 349425
2006
Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unreatized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
Obligations of U.S. Government
Agencies 3 10,778,930 $ 14,189 $39,167,567 § 521,996 $ 49,946,497 § 536,183
Obligations of States and
Political Subdivisions 7,413,405 27,805 37,066,448 621,373 44,479,853 649,178
Mortgage-backed securities - - 462,497 8,452 462,497 8,452
Corporate Bonds 1,002,050 2,629 3,625,615 108,293 4,627,665 110,922
Total Temporarily Impaired
Securities $ 19,194,385 $ 44,623 $80,322,127 $1,260,114 $ 99,516,512 $ 1,304,737

The Company evaluates securitics for other-than-temporary impairment-at least on a quarterly basis, and more frequently when
economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation, Consideration is given to the length of time and the extent to which the
fair value has been less than cost, the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and the intent and ability of the
Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. In
analyzing an issuer's financial condition, the Company may consider whether the securities are issued by the federal government
or its agencies, whether downgrades by bond rating agencies have occurred, and the results of reviews of the issuer's financial
condition. Since the Company has the ability and intent to hold the securities in the table above until a market price recovery or
maturity, the impairment of these securities is not deemed to be other-than-temporary and it is felt that the full principal will be
collected as anticipated.

The Company had a 1.9% limited partnership interest in the Morgan Keegan Mezzanine Fund, LLP. This investment is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting since it is a partnership.
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NOTE 3 - LOANS
Loans at ycar end were as follows:

2007 2006
Construction and land development § 21,827,519 $ 11,682,386
Commercial and industrial 30,711,886 24,288,650
Agricultural 8,259,742 5,898,351
Real estate loans secured by:
Farmland 33,551,011 28,145,094
Residential property 77,961,341 70,655,465
Nonresidential, nonfarm 115,478,482 112,650,097
Consumer 24,606,752 22,964,581
Other loans 9,603,861 4,846,438
Subtotal 322,000,594 281,131,062
Less: Net deferred loan fees (370,700) (314,601)
Allowance for loan losses (3,467,019) (3,473,143
Loans, net $ 318,162,875 $ 277,343,318
Activity in the allowance for loan losses was as follows:
2007 2006 2005
Beginning balance $ 3,473,143 $ 3,735,255 $ 3,489,490
Provision for loan losses 261,391 175,468 600,942
Loans charged-off (517,418) (739,654) (752,553)
Recoveries 249,903 379,220 397,376
Adjustment for off-balance
sheet credit exposures - (77,146) -
Ending balance 3,467,019 3,473,143 3,735,255
Individually impaired loans were as follows:
2007 2006
Year-end loans with no allocated allowance
for loan losses $ 427548 $ 583,817
Year-end loans with allocated allowance
for loan losses - 208,595
Total § 427,548 § 792412
Amount of the allowance for loan losses allocated - § 198,328
2007 2006 2005
Average of individually impaired loans during the year $ 542,390 $ 1,616,197 $ 1,684,462
Interest income recognized during impairment 18,217 60,157 99,135
Cash-basis interest income recognized 18,217 60,157 99,135
Nonaccrual loans and loans past due 90 days still on accrual were as follows:
2007 2006
Loans past due over 90 days still on accrual $ - 3 5,822
Nonaccrual loans 427,548 792,412

Nonaccrual loans and loans past due 90 days still on accrual include both smaller balance homogencous loans that are collectively

evaluated for impairment and individually classified impaired loans.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 —- PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
Year-end premises and equipment were as follows:

2007 2006
Land $ 2,706,574 $ 2,351,246
Buildings 14,335,726 14,013,490
Furniture and equipment 6,854,165 6,470,206
Leasehold improvements - 54,959
$ 23,896,465 $ 22,889,901
Less: Accumulated depreciation $(11,947,701) $(11,308,710)

$ 11,948,764 $ 11,581,191

Operating Leases: The Company leases certain branch properties and equipment under operating leases. Rent expense was
$8,600, $27,600, and $28,005 for 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. The Company entered into a new lease agreement in the
fourth quarter of 2007 that begins in January, 2008, Rent commitments, before considering renewal options that generally are
present, were as follows:

2008 $75,783
2009 99,243
2010 101,724
2011 104,267
2012 106,873

Total $491,890

NOTE 5 - DEPOSITS
Time deposits of $100,000 or more were $178,039,509 and $144,299,770 at year-end 2007 and 2006.

Scheduled maturities of time deposits for the next five years were as follows:

2008 ’ $ 274,343,571
2009 19,511,798
2010 14,158,328
2011 979,681
2012 2,973,218

Overdrafts in the amounts of $3,130,721 and $710,669 were reclassified as loans as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

NOTE 6 - SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are secured by U.S. government agency securities with a carrying amount of
$2,364,752 and $2,317,204 at year-end 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are financing arrangements that mature daily. At maturity, the securities
underlying the agreements are returned to the Company. [Information concerning securities sold under agreements to repurchase
is summarnized as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Average daily balance during the year $ 1,657,896 $ 738,491 $ -
Average interest rate during the year 3.94% 4.04% -
Maximum month-end balance during the year % 1,809,996 $ 1,590,757 $ -
Weighted average interest rate at year-end 355% 4.04% -
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NOTE 7 - OTHER BORROWED FUNDS
At year end, advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank were as follows:

Principal
Amounts Qutstanding
December 31, Interest Maturity

2007 2006 Rates Dates
$ 19,552 s 31977 5.95% 2008
411,577 430,588 4.46% 2009
108,688 137,936 6.25% 2011
1,644,581 1,767,798 4,09%-7.40% 2012
1,169,739 1,190,960 5.09% 2013
171,043 186,226 6.50% 2016
114,412 122,732 4.87% 2018

$ 3,639,592 $ 3874217

Each advance is payable at its maturity date, with a prepayment penalty for fixed rate advances. The advances were collateralized
by $359,695,394 and $55,464,250 of first mortgage loans under a blanket lien arrangement at year-end 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Based on this collateral and the Company’s holdings of FHLB stock, the Company was eligible 10 borrow up to
$33,413,000 at year-end 2007.

Payment Information
Required payments over the next five years are:

2008 $ 248,071
2009 612,492
2010 233,679
2011 218,984
2012 1,135,902

At December 31, 2007, the Company had unsecured lines of credit from correspondent banks for federal fund purchases totaling
$25,000,000. No advances had been made against these lines at December 31, 2007.

NOTE 8 - INCOME TAXES
Income tax expense (benefit) was as follows:

2007 2006 2005

Current expense

Federal $ 1,599,596 $ 1,534,235 $ 1,598,875

State 486,817 395,404 511,633
Deferred expense

Federal (187,032) (52,807) (134,077)

State (38,242) {11,508) (203.,830)

Total § 1,861,139 $ 1,865,324 $ 1,772,601
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NOTE 8 - INCOME TAXES - (CONTINUED)
Effective tax rates differ from federal statutory rate of 34% applied to income before taxes due to the following:

2007 2006 2005
Federal taxes at statutory rate § 2,486,702 § 2,428,981 £ 2,391,002
Increase (decrease) resulting from
tax effect of:
Tax exempt interest on obligations
of states and political subdivisions (821,302) (726,372) (694,208)
State income taxes, net of federal
income tax benefit 296,060 260,967 133,848
Others, net (100,321) (98,252) (58,041)
Provision for Income Taxes $ 1,861,139 $ 1,865,324 £ 1,772,601

Year-end deferred tax assets and liabilities were due to the following:

2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for loan losses $ 1,029,942 $ 995,941
Director benefit plans 495,901 408,982
SFAS 115 equity adjustment - 389,482
Deferred loan fees 141,941 -
Other 179,815 147,524
Gross Deferred Tax Assets 1,847,599 1,941,929

Deferred tax liabilities:
SFAS 115 equity adjustment 242,077 -
Other securities 300,005 261,622
Other 53,814 22,319
Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities 595,896 283,941
Net Deferred Tax Asset $ 1,251,703 $ 1,657,988

The Company has sufficient refundable taxes paid in available carryback years to fully realize its recorded deferred tax assets.
Accordingly, no valuation has been recorded.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits
The amount of unrecognized tax benefits was $29,284 at both December 31, 2007 and 2006. The Company does not expect the
total amount of unrecognized tax benefits to significantly increase or decrease in the next 12 months.

The Company recognizes interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. The Company did not
have any material amount accrued for interest and penalties for the year ended December 31, 2007.

The Company and its subsidiarics are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax of the states of Tennessee and
Alabama. The Company first filed income tax returns in Alabama in 2005 and 2006. These returns are subject to examination.
The registrant is no longer subject to examination by U.S. federal and Tennessee taxing authorities for years before 2004,

NOTE 9 - BENEFIT PLANS

Profit Sharing Plan: The Bank has a non-contributory trusteed profit sharing retirement plan covering all officers and employees
who have completed a year of service and are over the age of 21, According to the plan, the Bank's contribution will not be less
than 10% or no more than 15% of net income before taxes, with an overall limitation not to exceed 15% of the total salary of all
the participants. The plan expense was $719,844, $703,75% and $673,730 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plan: A deferred compensation plan covers all directors. Under the plan, the Company pays each
participant, or their beneficiary, the amount of fees deferred plus interest over 15 years, beginning with the individual's retirement,
death or disability. A liability is accrued for the obligation under this plan. The expense incurred for the deferred compensation
for each of the last three years was $266,402, $254,395 and $176,873 resulting in a deferred compensation liability of $1,295,118,
$1,068,118, and $840,415, respectively.
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NOTE 9 - BENEFIT PLANS - (CONTINUED)

Employee Stock Purchase Plan: The 1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "1994 Employee Plan") permits the granting of
rights to eligible employees of the Corporation 1o acquire stock. A total of 150,000 shares were reserved under this pian. The
Company has agreed to pay 3% of the interest rate cost, up to a maximum of $18,000 per year for all participants, if the employee
chooses to purchase shares under the 1994 Employee Plan and borrows the funds to purchase the shares from the Company. The
employee may also choose to purchase the shares with cash. The Company has a policy of using outstanding shares to satisfy
purchases of stock made under the 1994 Employee Plan, if available. If currently available shares are not sufficient to cover these
purchases, then new shares are issued to satisfy thesc purchases. The Board has established the following guidelines as to the
number of shares employees are allowed 10 purchase on July 1, each year:

Years of Service and Number of Shares

Position Under 10 vears Qver 10 years
Vice-Presidents and above 200 250
All other Officers 125 175
Non-Officers 75 125

The expense related to the 1994 Employee Plan was not material in 2007, 2006 or 2005.

NOTE 10 - OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
The following table summarizes the components of other operating expenses for the years ended December 31:

2007 2006 2005
Directors' fees and expense b 440,002 $ 432,045 $ 398,524
Stationery and supplies 203,679 208,898 178,472
Insurance 141,563 123,490 136,855
Collection and professional fees 468,256 211,515 302,181
Postage 161,982 161,627 147,550
Data processing expense 300,750 262,400 184,100
Other 1,150,708 1,143,855 1,135,861

$ 2,866,940 3 2,543,836 3 2,483,543

NOTE 11 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Beginning balance $ 1,864,116
New loans 1,206,195
Effect of changes on composition of related parties (61,378)
Repayments (806,765)
Balance at end of year $ 2,102,168

Deposits from principal officers, directors, and their affiliates at year-end 2007 and 2006 were $5,565,000 and $5,641,000,
respectively.

NOTE 12 - STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
Bank employees (and in prior years, non-employee directors) may be granted options or rights to purchase shares of the
Corporation's common stock under the Corporation’s stock option and employee stock purchase plans.

The 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2007 Plan") was approved by the Company's shareholders at its annual meeting of
shareholders held on April 26, 2007. A total of 100,000 shares were reserved under the 2007 Plan, of which the Company
awarded 8,250 shares of restricted stock to certain employees of the Company. The forfeiture restrictions with respect to these
awards lapse on the onc year anniversary of the date of grant. Compensation expense associated with these restricted share
awards is recognized over the time period that the restrictions associated with the awards lapse.

The 1997 Stock Option Plan (the "1997 Plan"} permitted the Board of Dircctors to grant options to key employces. A total of
100,000 shares were reserved under the plan of which 27,500 were granted. These options expire generally 10 years from the
date of grant. The 1997 Plan expired in the second quarter of 2007.

31



FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 12 - STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION - (CONTINUED)

The 1994 Outside Directors’ Stock Option Plan (the "1994 Directors’ Plan") permitted the granting of stock options to non-
employee directors. A total of 150,000 shares were reserved under this plan. An option to purchase 500 shares was granted
annually upon becoming a member of the Board of Directors, of which 250 shares were immediately exercisable and the
remaining 250 shares were exercisable upon the first annual meeting of shareholders following the date of grant provided the
optionee was still serving as an outside director. In addition, each outside director upon first becoming a board member received
an immediately exercisable option to purchase 2,500 shares, less the number of shares of stock previously beneficially owned.
These options expired ten years from the date of grant. During 2003, the Board terminated this Plan. At the time of termination,
options 1o purchase 66,160 shares under the plan had not been granted.

A summary of the stock option activity in the 2007 Plan, the 1997 Plan and the 1994 Directors’ Plan for 2007 follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
of Options Price Term Value

Outstanding at January 1, 2007 22,064 $ 3811
Granted - -
Exercised (4,812) 32.55
Expired - -
Outstanding December 31, 2007 17,252 $ 39.67 3.2 $ 264,554
Vested 17,252 39.67 32 $264,554
Exercisable at December 31, 2007 17,252 $ 39.67 32 $ 264,554

Information related to stock option activity in the 2007 Plan, the 1997 Plan and the 1994 Directors' Plan during each year follows:

2007 2006 2005
Intrinsic value of options exercised $ 108,040 § 73,131 $ 85499
Cash received from option exercises 156,620 96,019 139,701
Tax benefit realized from option exercises 9,358 6,560 32,737

Weighted average fair value of options granted - - -

As of December 31, 2007, there were no nonvested stock options therefore there was no unrecognized compensation cost related
to nonvested stock options granted under the Plans. No compensation cost has been charged against income for these plans
related to stock options for 2007, 2006 and 2005. The Company has a policy to issue new shares to satisfy the exercise of share
options.

The 2007 Plan provides for the issvance of restricted shares to employees, directors and contractors of the Company.
Compensation expense is recognized over the vesting period of the awards based on the fair value of the stock at issue date. The
fair value of the stock was determined using the price, of which the Company is aware, at which the Company’s Common Stock
was traded on a date closest to the award date. These restricted shares vest at the rate of twenty percent on each anniversary of
the grant date. Compensation expense of $28,760 has been charged against income for this plan in 2007 related to the grants of
restricted shares. Total shares issuable under the 2007 plan are 91,750 at year end 2007, and 8,250 restricted shares were issued
in 2007.
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NOTE 12 —STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION — (CONTINUED)
A summary of changes in the Company’s nonvested shares for the year follows:

Weighted-Average

Grant-Date

Nonvested Shares Sharcs Fair Valug

Nonvested at January 1, 2007 - 5 -
Granted 8,250 55.00

Vested - -

Forfeited - -
Nonvested at December 31, 2007 8,250 3 55.00

As of December 31, 2007, there was $424,990 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested restricted shares
granted under the 2007 Plan. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 4.7 years. The total fair
value of shares vested during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $0 for all three years.

NOTE 13 - REGULATORY CAPITAL MATTERS

Banks and bank holding companics are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies.
Capital adequacy guidelines and, additionally for banks, prompt corrective action regulations, involve quantitative measures of
assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Capital amounts and
classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by regulators. Failure to meet capital requirements can initiate regulatory
action. Management believes as of December 31, 2007, the Company and Bank mect all capital adequacy requirements to which
it is subject.

Prompt corrective action regulations provide five classifications: well capitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapitalized,
significantly undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalized, although these terms are not used to represent overall financial
condition. If adequately capitalized, regulatory approval is required to accept brokered deposits. [If undercapitalized, capital
distributions are limited, as is asset growth and expansion, and capital restoration plans arc required. At year-end 2007 and 2006,
the most recent regulatory notifications categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management belicves have changed the
institution's category.

Actual and required capital amounts (in thousands) and ratios are presented below at year end.

To Be Well Capitalized

Required Under Prompt
For Capital Corrective Action
Actual Adequacy Purposes Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2007

Total Capital to risk weighted asscts

FPNC $ 52,759 13.96% § 30226 > 8.00% N/A

FNB 51,862 13.72 30,222 > 8.00 37,778 = 10.00%
Tier [ (Cor¢) Capital to risk weighted assets

FPNC 49,215 13.03 15113 > 4.00 N/A

FNB 48,318 12.79 15,111 = 4.00 22,667 = 6.00%
Ticr 1 (Core) Capital to average quarterly assets

FPNC 49215 9.49 20,742 > 4.00 N/A

FNB 48,318 9.32 20,740 > 4.00 25,925 = 5.00%

As of December 31, 2006

Total Capital to risk weighted assets

FPNC 5 51,207 15.26% $ 26,844 > 8.00% N/A

FNB 50,612 15.09 26,840 > 8.00 33,550 = 10.00
Tier I (Core) Capital to risk weighted assets

FPNC 47,657 14.20 13,422 > 4.00 N/A

FNB 47,062 14.03 13,420 = 4.00 20,130 > 6.00
Ticr I (Core) Capital Lo avcrage quarterly assets

FPNC 47,657 9.99 19,089 > 4.00 N/A

FNB 47,062 9.86 19,087 = 4.00 23,859 > 5.00
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NOTE 13 - REGULATORY CAPITAL MATTERS - (CONTINUED)

Dividend Restrictions: The Company's principal source of funds for dividend payments is dividends received from the Bank.
Banking regulations limit the amount of dividends that may be paid without prior approval of regulatory agencies. Under these
regulations, the amount of dividends that may be paid in any calendar year is limited to the current year's net profits, combined
with the retained net profits of the preceding two years, subject to the capital requirements described above. During 2008, the
Bank could, without prior approval, declare dividends of approximately $2,933,000 plus any 2008 net profits retained to the date
of the dividend declaration.

NOTE 14 - LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER RELATED ACTIVITIES

Some financial instruments, such as loan commitments, credit lines, letters of credit, and overdraft protection, are issued to meet
customer financing needs. These are agreements to provide credit or to support the credit of others, as long as conditions
established in the contract are met, and usually have expiration dates. Commitments may expire without being used.
Off-balance-sheet risk to credit loss exists up to the face amount of these instruments, although material losses are not anticipated.
The same credit policies are used to make such commitments as are used for loans, including obtaining collateral at exercise of
the commitment.

The contractual amounts of financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk at year end were as follows:

2007 2006
Fixed Rate Variable Rate Fixed Rate Variable Rate
Commitments to make loans $ 523,000 § 1,090,000 $ 2,013,400 $ 575,000
Unused Lines of credit 24,675,739 33,243,106 22,901,096 28,419,556
Standby letters of credit 1,279,516 - 1,656,855 -
Mortgage loans sold with repurchase
requirements outstanding 5,775,046 - 7,059,087 -

Commitments to make loans are generally made for periods of 60 days or less. The fixed rate loan commitments have interest
rates ranging from 7.25% to 9.00% and maturities ranging from 1 year to S years.

NOTE 15 - FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Carrying amount and estimated fair values of financial instruments at year end were as follows:

2007 2006
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

Financial assets:

Cash and short-term investments $ 27,896 § 27,896 $ 30,532 3 30,532

Securities 153,900 153,900 147,191 147,191

Loans 321,630 322,149 280,816 279,116

Less: allowance for loan losses {3,467) (3,467) (3,473) (3,473)

Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1,467 1,467 1,467 1,467

Accrued interest receivable 4,862 4862 4,174 4,174

Company-owned life insurance 8,269 8,269 7,774 7,774
Financial liabilities:

Deposits 469,008 470,797 426,475 426,118

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 1,726 1,726 1,409 1,409

Other borrowed funds 3,640 3,760 3,874 3,857

Accrued interest payable 3,030 3,030 2,861 2,861

Off-balance-sheet credit-related items:
Loan commitments - - - R

The metheds and assumptions used to estimate fair value are described as follows:
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NOTE 15 - FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - (CONTINUED)

Carrying amount is the estimated fair value for cash and cash equivalents, interest bearing deposits, Federal Home Loan Bank
stock, accrued interest receivable and payable, demand deposits, short-term debt, and variable rate loans or deposits that reprice
frequently and fully. Security fair values are based on market prices or dealer quotes, and if no such information is available, on
the rate and term of the security and information about the issuer. For fixed rate loans or deposits and for vanable rate loans or
deposits with infrequent repricing or repricing limits, fair value is based on discounted cash flows using current market rates
applicd to the estimated life and credit risk. Fair values for impaired loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis or
underlying collateral values. Fair value of loans held for sale is nol considered material. Fair value of debt is based on current
rates for similar financing. The fair value of off-balance-sheet items is not considered material.

NOTE 16 - PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Condensed financial information of First Pulaski National Corporation follows:

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

ASSETS 2007 2006
Cash 3 764,945 $ 515,019
Investment in subsidiary, at equity 48,736,315 46,467,386
Other assets 143,497 81,177

TOTAL ASSETS § 49644757 $ 47,063,582

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Liabilities
Accrued expenses $ 11,732 $ 1,540
Total Liabilities 11,732 1,540
Shareholders' Equity 49.633,025 47,062,042
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY _§ 49,644,757 $ 47.063,582

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

INCOME
Dividends from subsidiary $ 4,296,234 $ 3,637,790 $ 4,629,753
Other income 75 25 14,970

4,296,309 3,637,815 4,644,723

EXPENSES
Other expense 144,330 76,396 148,558

Income before income tax and undistributed
subsidiary income 4,151,979 3,561,419 4,496,165

I[ncome tax benefits (55,235) (29,719) (45,251)

Equity in undistributed eamings of subsidiary 1,245,476 1,687,599 716,294

NET INCOME $ 5,452,690 § 5218737  § 5257710
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NOTE 16 — PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED})

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2003
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 5,452,690 S 5,278,737 § 5251710
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities -
Equity in undistributed eamings of subsidiary {1,245,476) (1,687,599) (716,294)
Stock-based compensation expense 28,760 - -
(Increase)} decrease in other assets {62,320) (4,073) 522,332
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 10,192 - {199,740)
Cash Provided by Operating Activities 4,183,846 3,587,065 4,864,008
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Cash dividends paid (2,796,233) (2,637,790) (2,629,753)
Proceeds from issuance of commeon stock 281,690 96,019 139,702
Common stock repurchased (1,428,735) (1,270,250) (2,209,830)
Tax benefit arising from exercise of director common stock options 9,358 - -
Cash Used by Financing Activities (3,933,920) (3,812,021) (4,699,931)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH, net 249,926 (224,956) 164,077
CASH, beginning of year 515,019 739,975 575,808
CASH, end of year 3 764,945 $ 515,019 $ 739,975
NOTE 17 - EARNINGS PER SHARE
The factors used in the earnings per share computation follow:
2007 2006 2005
Basic
Net income § 5,452,690 $ 5,278,737 $ 5,257,710
Weighted average common
shares outstanding 1,552,998 1,572,535 1,596,695
Basic earnings per common share $ 3.51 ¥ 3.36 $ 3.29
Diluted
Net income § 5,452,690 § 5,278,737 $ 5257710
Weighted average common
shares outstanding for basic
carnings per common share 1,552,998 1,572,535 1,596,695
Add: Dilutive effects of assumed
exercises of stock options 5,921 5,486 7,213
Average shares and dilutive
potential common shares 1,558,919 1,578,021 1,603,908
Diluted eanings per common share by 3.50 5 3.35 $ 3.28

All stock options were considered in computing diluted earnings per share since none were anti-dilutive.
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NOTE 18 - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Interest Net Interest Net Eamnings Per Share
Income Income Income Basic Diluted
{(in thousands, except per share amounts)
2007
First quarter $ 7,935 $ 4,063 $ 1,316 b 0.84 $ 0.84
Second quarter 8,287 4,193 1,368 0.88 0.88
Third quarter 8,588 4,229 1,476 0.95 0.95
Fourth quarter 8,689 4,237 1,293 0.84 0.83
2006
First quarter $ 6,694 $ 3,895 $ 1,250 8 0.79 b 0.79
Second quarter 7,045 3,941 1,373 0.87 0.87
Third quarter 7,493 4,005 1,374 0.88 0.87
Fourth quarter 7,704 4,015 1,282 0.82 0.82
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTION

First Pulaski National Corporation is a one-bank holding company with its only direct subsidiary being First National Bank of
Pulaski (“First National” or the “Bank”). During the third quarter of 2001, First National’s wholly-owned subsidiary, First
Putaski Reinsurance Company (“FPRC”) received its insurance license. FPRC is engaged in the business of reinsuring credit
insurance written by the Corporation’s subsidiary,

This review should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain of the statements in this discussion may constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, (the “Exchange Act”), as amended. The words “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “should,”
“may,” *“could,” “plan,” “believe,” “likely,” “seck,” “estimate” and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-
looking statements, but other statements not based on historical information may also be considered forward-looking. All
forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertaintics and other factors that may cause the actual results, performance or
achievements of the Corporation to differ materially from any results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.
Such factors include those identified in “Item 1A. Risk Factors” in the Corporation’s 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K and,
without limitation, (1) increased competition with other financial institutions, (ii} lack of sustained growth in the economy in the
Corporation’s market area, (iii) rapid fluctuations in interest rates, (iv) significant downturns in the businesses of one or more
large customers, (v) risks inherent in originating loans, including prepayment risks, (vi} the fluctuations in collateral values, the
rate of loan charge-offs and the level of the provision for losses on loans, (vii} changes in the legislative and regulatory
environment and (viii) loss of key personnel. Many of such factors are beyond the Corporation’s ability to control or predict, and
readers are cautioned not to put undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. In connection with the “safe harbor”
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, the Corporation cautions investors that future financial and
operating results may differ materially from those projected in forward-looking statements made by, or on behalf of, the
Corporation. The Corporation disclaims any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements contained in this
discussion, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

OVERVIEW

Several key performance indicators are used in evaluating the results of operations of the Corporation and the Bank. Key items
include the volume and quality of loans. The Bank saw loan demand increase in 2007, leading to an increase of $40.8 million, or
14.7 percent, in total net loans from December 31, 2006 to December 31, 2007. Nonaccrual loans decreased $365,000 from the
end of year 2006 to the end of year 2007 to $428,000, somewhat lower than historical normal levels. Loans that were past due 90
days or more and still accruing interest were below historical levels as well. There were no such loans at year-end 2007 and only
$6,000 in such loans at year-end 2006. Also, other real estate owned increased slightly, showing an increase of $8,000 from year-
end 2006 to year-end 2007. Net charged-off loans in 2007 continued at a historically low level as the Bank experienced only
$268,000 in net charged-off loans during the year. The ratio of net charge-offs to average loans outstanding fell to 0.09% in
2007, from 0.13% in 2006, indicating that the quality of the loan portfolio remained strong in 2007. Another key item is the
growth of deposits, which grew $42.5 million, or 10.0% in 2007. Most of the growth in deposits was in interest-bearing balances,
especially time deposits. The Bank continued to see customers move from savings/money market balances toward time deposits
in 2007. Balances in savings/money market accounts decreased $9.6 million while time deposit balances increased $55.1 million
from year-end 2006 to year-end 2007. This trend increased in 2007 as compared to 2006 when balances in savings/moncy market
account fell $5.7 million and time deposits increased $24.6 miilion during the year.

Net income increased by $174,000 to $5.45 million in 2007 as compared to 2006, however the net interest margin continued to
experience compression throughout 2007 as the net interest margin fell to 3.72 percent from 3.85 percent in 2006. Intense local
competition in both loan and deposit pricing and a flat-to-inverted yield curve were the primary contributors to the decrease in the
net interest margin in 2007. The net interest margin also was negatively impacted by the decline in interest rates that began in
September 2007 as the Corporation’s variable-rate loans repriced quicker than the Corporation was able to reprice its interest-
bearing deposits. The compression of the net interest margin slowed somewhat in 2007 from the level experienced in 2006 as the
net interest margin declined 13 basis points in 2007 as compared to 24 basis points in 2006. Management anticipates that this
aggressive competition will continue i 2008 and that the Corporation’s net interest margin may continue to experience
compression. Management monitors the Bank’s net interest margin closely and strives to maintain the nct interest margin at
acceptable levels,

In January 2008 the Bank opened an office in Huntsville, Alabama, which is the first urban market in which the Bank has opened
an office and the first office located outside the state of Tennessee. The Bank also plans to open an office in Athens, Alabama in
the second quarter of 2008. Management believes this expansion into the North Alabama market is vital to the long-term
continued growth and success of the Corporation. Our expansion into these new markets however is likely to increase non-
interest cxpense in future periods as compared to earlier periods as the Bank incurs increase personnel costs and expenses
associated with the construction of two new offices.

38




CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting principles we follow and our methods of applying these principles conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States and with general practices within the banking industry. In connection with the application of those
principles to the determination of our allowance for loan losses, we have made judgments and estimates which have significantly
impacted our financial position and results of operations.

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level that is considered to be adequate to reflect estimated credit losses for
specifically identified loans as well as estimated probable credit losses inherent in the remainder of the loan portfolio at the
balance sheet date. The allowance is increased by the provision for loan losses, which is charged against current period operating
results and decreased by the amount of charge-offs, net of recoveries. A formal review of the allowance for loan losses is
prepared quarterly to assess the risk in the portfolio and to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. Our
methodology of assessing the appropriateness of the allowance consists of several elements, which include the historical
allowance and specific allowances as described below.

The historical allowance is calculated by applying loss factors to outstanding loans. For purposes of the quarterly review, the loan
portfolio is separated by loan type, and each type is treated as a homogeneous pool. Each loan is assigned a risk rating by loan
officers using established credit policy guidelines. These risk ratings are periodically reviewed, and all risk ratings are subject to
review by an independent Credit Review Department. Each risk rating is assigned an allocation percentage which, when
multiplied times the dollar value of loans in that risk category, results in the amount of the allowance for loan losses allocated to
these loans. Allocation percentages are based on our historical loss experience and may be adjusted for significant factors that, in
management’s judgment, affect the collectibility of the portfolio as of the evaluation date.

Specific allowances are established in cases where management has determined a loan is impaired. A loan is impaired when full
payment under the loan terms is not probable. Every substandard or worse loan in excess of $250,000 and all loans criticized as
“Other Assets Especially Mentioned” over $400,000 are reviewed quarterly by the Executive and Loan Committee of the Bank’s
Board of Directors to review the level of loan losses required to be specifically allocated.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

Net income for 2007 was approximately $5.45 million, or $3.50 per diluted share, compared with approximately $5.28 million, or
$3.35 per diluted share, in 2006 and approximately $5.26 million, or $3.28 per diluted share, in 2005. Return on average assets
was 1.08% in 2007, 1.13% in 2006 and 1.19% in 2005. The return on average equity was 11.2%, 11.2% and 11.5% for 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. A flattening and at times, inverted, yield curve, a shift in our deposit makeup and increased
competition in the Corporation’s local market led to decreases in the net interest margin in all three years, which led to the
declining to flat ratios above.

NET INTEREST INCOME

Net interest income is the difference between interest and fees earned on loans, securities and other interest-carning assets
(interest income) and interest paid on deposits, repurchase agreements, and borrowed funds (intetest expense). In 2007, net
intcrest income increased by 5.5% to $16.72 million from $15.86 million in 2006, following a decrcase of 0.6% in 2006 from
$15.95 million in 2005. Total assets of the Corporation increased approximately $45.9 million from December 31, 2006 to
December 31, 2007. Loans net of uncamned income increased approximately $40.8 million from December 31, 2006 to December
31, 2007. Deposits increased approximately $42.5 million over the same period, contributing to an approximately $6.7 million
increase in investments as the Corporation invested the excess growth in deposits over loans in investment securities, which
produce lower interest income than do loans. Also, federal funds sold decreased approximately $1.9 million from December 31,
2006 to December 31, 2007. Total assets of the Corporation increased approximately $33.7 million from December 31, 2005 to
December 31, 2006. Loans net of unearned income increased approximately $7.9 million from December 31, 2005 to December
31, 2006. Deposits increased approximately $29.1 million over the same period, contributing to an approximately $13.3 million
increase in investments as the Corporation invested the excess growth in deposits over loans in lower-yielding investment
securities. Also, federal funds sold increased approximately $7.2 million from December 31, 2005 to December 31, 2006.

Net interest income is a function of the average balances of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the yields
camed and rates paid on those balances. Management strives to maintain an acceptable spread between the yields earned on
interest-earning assets and rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities to maintain an adequate net interest margin.

Net interest income on a fully taxable equivalent basis incrcased $885,000 from 2006 to 2007. This increase resulted from a
$1,012,000 increase due 10 increased volumes offset by a $127,000 decrease due to changes in interest rates. The increase in
interest income in 2007 over 2006 was slightly more due to an increase in volumes of interest-carning assets than to an increase in
the interest rates earned on interest-carning assets. The increase in interest expense in 2007 was slightly more due to an increase
in rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities than to an increase in the volumes of interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest income on
a fully taxable equivalent basis decrcased $160,000 from 2005 to 2006. This decrease resulted from a $509,000 increase duc to
increased volumes offset by a $669,000 decrease due to changes in interest rates. The increasc in interest expense in 2006 was
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primarily a result of increased short-term interest rates, as well as intense local competition for interest-bearing deposits,
especially time deposits.

The following tables summarize the changes in interest earned and interest paid for the given time periods and indicate the factors
affecting these changes. The first table presents, by major categories of assets and liabilities, the average balances, the
components of the taxable equivalent net interest earnings/spread, and the yield or rate for the years 2007, 2006 and 2005.

DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'
EQUITY: INTEREST RATES AND INTEREST DIFFERENTIAL

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yietd/
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
(in thousands of dollars)
ASSETS
Interest-Earning Assets:
Loans $300,051 526,617 8.87% $277,288 $23,377 8.43% $267.459 $20,500 7.66%
Taxable investment secutities 83,689 3,937 4.70% 76,337 2,879 3.77% 71,313 2,500 351%
Nou-taxable investment
securities 75,488 3,203 4.24% 67,001 2,919 4.36% 63,778 2,888 4.53%
Federal funds sold 8,823 446 5.05% 8,841 444 5.02% 6,382 194 3.04%
Deposits in other banks 408 17 4.17% 410 20 4.88% 204 7 3.43%
Total Interest-Earning Assets 468,459 34,220 7.30% 429,877 29,639 6.89% 409,136 26,089 6.38%
Non-Interest Earning Assets:
Cash and due from banks 9,803 12,050 11,387
Premises and equipment, net 11,889 10,677 9,740
Other Assets 16,784 14,472 15,152
Less allowance for loan losses (3,488) (3,731) (3,619)
Total Non-Interest-Earning Assets 34,988 33,468 32,660
TOTAL $503,447 $463,345 $441,796

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest-Bearing Liabilities:

Demand deposits $36,708 3512 1.39% $33,289 $370 1.11% $32272 $313 0.97%

Savings deposits 63,334 1,399 2.21% 69,500 1,418 2.04% 79,606 1,287 1.62%

Time deposits 286,566 14,596 5.09% 250,203 11,054 4.42% 224964 7,525 3.34%
Repurchase agreements 1,658 65 3.92% 738 30 4.07% 0 0 0.00%
Other borrowed money 3,925 205 5.22% 3,989 209 5.24% 4,825 246 5.10%
Total Interest-Bearing

Liabilities 392,191 16,777 4.28% 357,719 13,081 3.66% 341,667 9.371 2.74%

Non-Interest-Bearing Liabilities:

Demand deposits 58,433 56,553 52,225

Other liabilities 4,680 2,026 2,929
Total Non-Interest Bearing

Liabilities 63,113 58,579 55,154
Shareholders’ Equity 48,143 47,647 44,975

TOTAL §503,447 $463,345 $441,796

Net interest earnings/spread,

on a taxable equivalent basis 17,443 3.12% 16,558 3.85% 16,718 4.09%
Taxable equivalent adjustments:

Loans 164 108 0

[nvestment securities 557 594 700
Total taxabic equivalent adjustment 721 702 770
Net interest earnings $16,722 $15,856 $15,948
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Note: The taxable equivalent adjustment has been computed based on a 34% federal income tax rate and has given effect to the
disallowance of interest cxpense, for federal income tax purposes, related to certain tax-free assets. Loans include nonaccrual
loans for all years presented. Interest on loans includes loan fees. Loan fees included above amounted to $1,203,888 for 2007,
$1,158,644 for 2006 and 31,141,136 for 2005.

The following table shows the change from year to year for each component of the taxable equivalent net interest margin
separated into the amount generated by volume changes and the amount generated by changes in the yiclds earned or rates paid.

2007 Compared to 2006
Increase (Decrease) Due to

2006 Compared to 2005
Increase (Decrease) Due to

Volume Rate Net

Volume Rate Net

(in thousands of dollars) (in thousands of dellars)

Interest Earned on:

Loans and lease financing $ 1,919 $ 1,324 $ 3,240 $ 753 $ 2124 § 2,877
Taxable investment securities 277 781 1,058 176 203 379
Non-taxable investment securities 370 (86) 284 146 (115) 31
Federal funds sold (1 3 2 75 175 250
Other deposits 0 (3) 3) 7 6 13
Total Interest-Eamning Assets $ 2,565 $ 2,016 $ 4,581 $ 1,157 $ 2,393 $ 3,550
Interest Paid On:
Demand deposits $38 5104 $142 $10 $47 $57
Savings deposits (126) 107 19 (163) 294 131
Time deposits 1,607 1,935 3,542 844 2,685 3,529
Repurchase agreements 37 2) 35 - 30 30
Other borrowed moncy (3) () (4) (43) 6 (37)
Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities ) 1,553 $ 2,143 $ 3,696 $ 648 $ 3,062 § 3,710
Net Interest Earnings, on a taxable
equivalent basis $ 1,012 $ (127) § 885 $ 509 $§ (6699 § (160)
Less: taxable equivalent adjustment 19 (68)
Net Interest Eamnings 3 866 §  (92)

The change in interest due to volume has been determined by applying the rate from the earlier year to the change in average
balances outstanding from one year to the next. The change in interest due to rate has been detertined by applying the change in
rate from one year to the next to the average balances outstanding in the later year. The computation of the taxable equivalent
adjustment has given effect to the disallowance of interest expense, for federal income tax purposes, related to certain tax-free
assets.

NON-INTEREST INCOME

Non-interest income totaled $4,245,000 in 2007, an increase of $133,000, or 3.2%, from 2006. The increase is primarily
attributable to a $131,000 increasc in dividends and other income, a $64,000 increase in service charges on deposit accounts, a
$55,000 increase in other service charges and a $39,000 increase in income on company-owned life insurance in 2007 as
compared to 2006. These increases were partially offset by a $86,000 decrease in gains (losses) on salc or wrile-downs of other
assets, net, and a $43,000 decrease in mortgage banking income.

Non-interest income totaled $4,112,000 in 2006, an increase of $168,000, or 4.3%, from 2005. The increase is primarity
attributable to a $137,000 increase in gains on the sale or write-down of other assets and a $65,000 increase in service charges on
deposit accounts in 2006 as compared to 2005. Substantially all of the gains and losses on the sale of other assets in 2006 and
2005 were attributable to gains and losses or write-downs on other real estate owned that was acquired through foreclosure. Also,
the increase in service charges on deposit accounts in 2006 as compared to 2005 was primarily due to increased overdraft fees.
These increases were offset however by a decrease in commissions and fees of $42,000.
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NON-INTEREST EXPENSE

Non-interest expense in 2007 was $13,392,000, up $743,000, or 5.9%, from 2006, This increase is primarily attributable to a
$391,000 increase in salaries and employee benefits and a $323,000 increase in other operating expenses in 2007 as compared (o
2006. The increase in salaries and employee benefits was largely due to increased personnel expenses per employee. The
increase in other operating ¢xpense was primarily due to non-recurring increased expenses related to improving operating
processes related to document imaging, as well as increased expenses related to the registrant’s efforts to comply with Section
404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The Corporation expects that its noninterest expense for 2008 will be negatively
impacted with the opening of its new offices in Huntsville and Athens.

Non-interest expense in 2006 was $12,649,000, up $388,000, or 3.2%, from 2005. This increase is primarily attributable to a
8276,000, or 3.9%, increase in salaries and employee benefits and a $110,000 increase in occupancy expense in 2006 as
compared to 2005. The increase in salaries and employee benefits was largely due to increased personnel expenses per employee.
The increase in occupancy expense was primarily due to increased repairs and maintenance expenses in 2006 as compared to
2005. These increases were partially offset by a decrease of 590,000, or 10.5% in fumiture and equipment expense in 2006 as
compared to 2005.

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

The provision for loan losses is the charge to earnings which management feels is necessary to maintain the allowance for loan
losses at a level considered adequate to absorb losses on existing loans. The adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is
determined by a continuous evaluation of the loan portfolio. The Bank utilizes an independent loan review function which
considers past loan experience, collateral value and possible effects of prevailing economic conditions. Findings are presented
regularly to management, where other factors such as actual loan loss experience relative to the size and characteristics of the loan
portfolio, deterioration in concentrations of credit, trends in portfolio volumes, delinquencies and non-performing loans and, when
applicable, reports of the regulatory agencies are considered. Management performs calculations for the minimum allowance
level needed and a final evaluation is made.

The provision for loan losses was $261,000 in 2007 compared to $175,000 in 2006 and $601,000 in 2005. The smalter provisions
for loan losses in 2007 and 2006 as compared to 2005 were primarily a result of an improvement in the overall condition of the
Bank’s loan portfolio in those years and in 2006 a slower growth in the loan portfolio.

INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense includes federal and state taxes on taxable earnings. Income taxes were $1,861,000, $1,865,000 and
$1,773,000 in 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively. The effective tax rates were 25.4%, 26.1% and 25.2% in 2007, 2006 and 2003,
respectively.

The Corporation had net deferred tax assets of $1,252,000 at December 31, 2007, as compared to a net deferred tax asset of
$1,658,000 at December 31, 2006. The deferred tax asset resulting from the allowance for loan losses was the largest component
of the deferred tax assct in both periods.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

LOANS

Management’s focus is to promote loan growth in the Corporation’s target market, emphasizing the expansion of business in the
Corporation’s trade arca. Efforts are taken to maintain a diversified portfolio without significant concentration of risk. Total
loans net of unearned fees increased $40.8 million from December 31, 2006 to December 31, 2007. All categories of loans
showed an increase in 2007. The categories of loans showing the largest increase included construction and land development
loans with an increase of $10.1 million, residential real estate loans with an increase of $7.3 million, commercial and industrial
loans with an increase of $6.4 miilion and agricultural real estate loans with an increase of $5.4 million in 2007.

Over the last three years, average total loans increased by $22.8 million, or 8.2%, in 2007, by $9.8 million, or 3.7%, in 2006 and
by $28.6 million, or 12.0%, in 2005, in cach case over the prior year. The growth in deposits was the primary funding source for
this continuing increase in loan demand.

LOAN QUALITY

Credit risk represents the maximum accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties failed
completely to perform as contracted and any collateral or security proved to be of no value, Concentrations of credit risk or types
of collateral arising from financial instruments exist in relation to certain groups of customers. A group concentration arises when
2 number of counterparties have similar cconomic characteristics that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to
be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions. The registrant does not have a significant concentration to any
individual customer or counterparty. The major concentrations of credit risk for the registrant arise by collateral type in relation
to loans and credit commitments. The only significant concentration that exists is in loans secured by real estate, primarily
commercial real estate loans (36 percent of the total loans) and 1-4 family residential loans (24 percent of total loans).
Commercial loans, both those secured by rcal estate and those not secured by real estate, are further classified by their appropriate
North American Industry Classification System (“NAICS™) code. Of those loans classified by NAICS code, the Corporation has
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concentrations of credit, defined as 25 percent or more of total risk-based capital, of loans to lessors of residential buildings and
dwellings (53 percent of total risk-based capital), loans secured by hotel and motel properties (34 pereent of total risk-based
capital), loans secured by subdivision land (30 percent of total risk-based capital) and loans secured by new single family housing
construction (29 percent of total risk-based capital). The Corporation saw an increase of $10.1 million, or 86.9 percent, in its
construction and land development loans at year-end 2007 as compared to year-end 2006, primarily due to increases in loans
secured by subdivision land. Larger construction and land development lines arc reviewed annually and are also included in
sample testing by an independent loan review function. Although the Corporation has a loan portfolio diversified by type of risk,
the ability of its customers to honor their contracts is to some extent dependent upon economic conditions in the regions where
our customers operate. A geographic concentration arises because the Corporation grants commercial, real estate and consumer
loans primarily to customers in Giles, Marshali and Lincoln Counties, Tennessee. In order to mitigate the impact of credit risk,
management strives to identify loans experiencing difficulty early enough to correct the problems and to maintain an allowance
for loan losses at a level management belicves is sufficient to cover inherent and specific losses in the lean portfolio.

The amounts of loans outstanding at the indicated dates are shown in the following table according to type of loan.

LOAN PORTFOLIO
December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{in thousands of Gollars)

Construction and land development $ 21828 § 11,682 § 9,654 § 7211 § 7859
Commercial and industrial 30,712 24,289 26,680 19,814 21,803
Agricultural 8,260 5,898 5,804 7,298 7,014
Real estate - farmland 33,551 28,145 23,334 21,845 19,463
Real estate - residential 77,961 70,655 75,544 74,913 60,619
Real estate - nonresidential, nonfarm 115,478 112,650 104,828 98,862 84,236
Installment - individuals 24,607 22,965 22,974 23,228 24077
Other loansn; 9,604 4,847 4,432 2.935 1473

$ 322,001 § 28L131 § 273,250 § 256,106 § 228,544

(1) Includes swedent loans, non-taxable loans, overdrafis, and all other loans not included in any of the designated categories.

The following table presents the maturity distribution of selected loan categories at December 31, 2007 (excluding residential
mortgage, home equity and installment-individual loans).

Due after one
Due in one year year but before Due after five

or less five years years Total
(in thowsands of dollars)
Construction and land development by 13,505 % 7,899 % 424 % 21,828
Commercial and industrial 17,883 10,441 2,388 30,712
Agricultural 7,310 950 - 8,260
Real estate-farmland 17,103 15,629 819 33,551
Real estate-nonresidential, nonfarm 33,995 65,670 15,813 115478
Total selected loans 3 89,796 § 100,589 §% 19444 § 209,829
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The table below summarizes the percentages of the loans selected for use in the preceding table falling into each of the indicated
maturity ranges and the sensitivity of such loans to interest rate changes for those with maturities greater than one year, all as of
December 31, 2007.

Due after one
Due in one year year but before Due after five

or less five years years Total

Percent of total selected loans 42.719% 47.94% 927% 100.00%
Cumulative percent of total 42.79% 90.73% 100.00%
Sensitivity of loans to changes in
interest rates-loans due after one year

Fixed rate loans $ 79835 % 3673 % 83,508

Variable rate loans 20,754 15,771 36,525

Total $ 100,589 §$ 19444 § 120,033
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SUMMARY OF LOAN LOSS EXPERIENCE

The following table summarizes loan balances at the end of each period and average loans outstanding, changes in the allowance
for loan losses arising from loans charged off and recoveries on loans previously charged off, and provisions for loan losses which
have been charged to expense.

For year ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

(in thousands of dollars)

Amount of net loans and

lease financing outstanding
at end of period $ 321,630 § 280,816 § 272,948 § 255824 & 218,303

Daily average amount of
loans and leases $ 300,051 § 277288 § 267459 § 238903 § 232,034

Balance of allowance for

possible loan losses at

beginning of period $ 3473 % 373 § 3489 % 3449 3 3,810
Less charge-offs:

Construction and land

development - - 56 - 731
Commercial and industrial 29 315 15 155 433
Agriculturai - 10 - 8 286
Real estate-farmland - - - 19 35
Real estate-residential 255 26 226 30 45
Real estate-nonresidential,

nonfarm - 24 - 393 181
Installment-Individuals 233 364 455 n 511
Other loans - - - - 14

517 739 752 997 2,236
Add recoveries:
Construction and land

development - - - - 13
Commercial and Industrial 13 31 15 88 63
Agricultural 25 35 15 21 14
Real estate-farmland - 21 12 22 -
Real estate-residential 32 34 58 22 4
Real estate-nonresidential,

nonfarm 34 8 6 33 1
Instaliment-Individuals 143 250 290 186 259
Other loans 3 - 1 l ]

250 379 397 373 355

Net loans charged off 267 360 355 624 1,881
Provision charged to expense 261 175 601 664 1,520
Adjustment for off-balance sheet

credit exposures - ; 7 - - -
Balance at end of period T 3467 , 3 1735 3§ 3489 3§ 3,449
Net charge-offs as percentage of

average loans outstanding: 0.09% 0.13% 0.13% 0.26% 0.81%
Net charge-offs as percentage of:

Provision for loan losses 102.3% 205.7% 59.1% 94.0% 123.8%

Allowance for loan losses 7.7% 10.4% 9.5% 17.9% 54.5%
Allowance at end of period to

loans, net of uneamed income 1.08% 1.24% 1.37% 1.36% 1.51%

As seen in the above table, net loans charged-off decreased to $267,000 in 2007 from $360,000 in 2006 following a slight
increase from $355,000 in 2005. An overall improvement in the Bank’s loan portfolio led to the smaller net charge-offs in 2007,
2006 and 2005 than in the prior two years. Net loans charged-off in 2007 consisted of net losses on real estate loans of $189,000,
net losses of $90,000 on loans to individuals, net losses of $16,000 on commercial and industrial loans and net recoveries of
$25,000 on agricultural loans. This compared to net loan charge-offs in 2006 which consisted of net losses on commercial and
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industrial loans of $284,000, net losses on loans to individuals of $114,000, net recoveries of $25,000, on agricultural loans and
net recoveries of 513,000 on real estate loans. The allowance for loan and lease losses at the end of 2007 was $3,467,000, or
1.08% of outstanding loans and leases, as compared to $3,473,000, or 1.24% of outstanding loans and leases, and $3,435,000, or
1.37% of outstanding loans and leases, in 2006 and 2003, respectively. Net loans charged-off amounted to 0.09% of average total
loans outstanding in 2007, 0.13% in 2006 and 0.13% in 2005.

The allowance for loan losscs was 8.1 times the balance of nonaccrual loans at the end of 2007 compared to 4.4 in 2006 and 3.8 in
2005. Nonaccrual loans decreased $365,000 to $428,000 at December 31, 2007 from $792,000 at December 31, 2006, primarily
due to a decrease in commercial real estate loans classified as nonaccrual. Nonaccrual loans decreased $197,000 to $792,000 at
December 31, 2006 from $989,000 at December 31, 2005, primarily due to a decrease in commercial and industrial loans
classified as nonaccrual. Management believes that the allowance for loan losses as of December 31, 2007 is adequate.

The following table sets out respectively the allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses and the percentage of loans by category
to total loans outstanding at the end of each of the years indicated.

December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(amounts in thousands of dollars)

Allowance applicable to:

Construction and land development 5 168 % 90 3 376§ 177 S 11
Commercial and industrial loans 847 372 658 456 454
Agriculiural loans 121 258 64 188 177
Real estate-farmland 310 240 267 203 160
Real estate-residential 565 856 833 804 613
Real estate-nonresidential

nonfarm 951 1,124 1,084 1,080 1,229
Installment-individual 447 513 428 558 699
Other loans 58 20 25 23 6

§ 3467 § 3473 5§ 3735 § 3489 § 3449

Percentages of loans by
category to total loans:

Construction and land development 6.78% 4.16% 3.53% 2.81% 3.44%
Commercial and industrial loans 9.54% 8.64% 9.77% 7.74% 9.54%
Agricultural loans 2.57% 2.10% 2.12% 2.85% 3.07%
Real estate-farmland 10.42% 10.01% 8.54% 8.53% 8.52%
Real estate-residential 24.21% 25.13% 27.65% 29.25% 26.52%
Real estate-nonresidential

nonfarm 35.86% 40.07% 38.36% 38.60% 36.86%
Installment-individual 7.64% 8.17% 8.41% 9.07% 10.53%
Other loans 2.98% 1.72% 1.62% 1.15% 1.52%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

The Corporation monitors changes in the credit quality, terms and loan concentrations in its loan portfolio. The overall credit
quality of the loan portfolio remained strong during 2007. Construction and land development leans increased $19.1 million, or
86.9 percent at year-end 2007 as compared to year-end 2006, primarily due to increases in loans secured by subdivision land.
This increase in construction and land development loans in 2007 was the largest increase in any category of loans in 2007. The
Corporation evaluates its exposure level to loan concentrations periodically to determine any amount of additional allowance
allocations that is necessary based on these concentrations.

NON-PERFORMING ASSETS
Non-performing assets include nonaccrual loans, loans restructured because of a debtor’s financial difficulties, other real estate
owned and loans past due ninety days or more as lo interest or principal payment.

Nonaccrual loans are those loans for which management has discontinued accrual of interest because there exists significant
uncertainty as to the full and timely collection of either principal or interest or such loans have become contractually past due 90
days or more with respect to principal or interest, unless such loans arc well secured and in the process of collection.

From December 31, 2006 1o December 31, 2007, nonaccruing loans decreased by 46.0% to $428,000 from $792,000 following a
decrease of 19.9% at year-end 2006 as compared to year-cnd 2005. The changes in each year were primarily a result of the items
discussed previously under the section titled “Summary of Loan Loss Experience.” There were no restructured loans as of
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006. Other real estate owned, consisting of properties acquired through foreclosures or
deeds in licu thereof, totaled $672,000 at December 31, 2007, an increase of 1.2% from $664,000 at December 31, 2006.

46




There were no loans past due 90 days or more and accruing interest as of December 31, 2007, At December 31, 2006, there were
$6,000 in loans past duc 90 days or more and accruing interest. All major credit lines and troubled loans are reviewed regularly
by a committee of the Board of Directors. Management believes that the Bank’s non-performing loans have been accounted for
in the methodology for calculating the allowance for loan losses.

The following table summarizes the Corporation’s nonaccrual loans, loans past due 90 days or more but accruing interest and
restructured loans.

December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{in thousands ol dollars)

Nonaccrual loans $ 428 $ 792 3 989 $ 511 g 2,410
Troubled debt restructurings 0 0 61 59 62
Other real estate owned 672 664 1,059 3,198 4,329
Loans past due 90 days or

more as to interest or

principal payment 0 6 107 305 248

The amount of interest income actually recognized on the nonaccrual loans during 2007, 2006 and 2005, was $18,000, $60,000
and $99,000, respectively. The additional amount of interest income that would have been recorded during 2007, 2006 and 2005,
if the above nonaccrual loans had been current in accordance with their original terms was $31,000, $55,000 and $15,000,
respectively.

Loans that are classified as “substandard™ by the Bank represent loans to which management has doubts about the borrowers’
ability to comply with the present loan repayment terms. As of December 31, 2007, there were approximately $8,025,000 in
loans that were classified as “substandard™ and accruing interest. This compares to approximately $7,950,000 in loans that were
classified as “substandard” and accruing interest as of December 31, 2006. As of December 31, 2007, management was not
aware of any specifically identificd loans, other than those included in the category discussed above that represent significant
potential problems or that management has doubts as to the borrower’s ability to comply with the present repayment terms. The
Corporation believes that it and the Bank has appropriate internal controls and although the Corporation and the Bank conduct
regular and thorough loan reviews, the risk inherent in the lending business results in periodic charge-offs of loans. The
Corporation maintains an allowance for loan losses that it believes to be adequate to absorb reasonably foreseeable losses in the
loan portfolio. Management evaluates, on a quarterly basis, the risk in the portfolio to determine an adequate allowance for loan
losses. The evaluation includes analyses of historical performance, the level of nonperforming and rated loans, specific analyses
of problem loans, loan activity since the previous quarter, loan review reports, consideration of current economic conditions and
other pertinent information. The evaluation is reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Bank. Also, as
a matter of policy, internal classifications of loans are performed on a routine and continuing basis. The section of this report
entitled — “Critical Accounting Policies” contains more information pertaining to the Corporation’s allowance for loan losses.

SECURITIES

The securities portfolio consists primarily of U.S. government agency securities, U.S. government-sponsored agency securities,
marketable bonds of states, counties and municipalitics, and corporate bonds. Management uses investment securities to assist in
maintaining proper interest rate sensitivity in the balance sheet, to provide securities to pledge as collateral for certain public
funds and repurchase agreements and to provide an alternative investment for available funds,

The following table sets forth the carrying amount of investment and other sccurities at the dates indicated:

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands of dollars)

Available-for-sale

U.S. Treasury securities $ - $ - $ -
U.S. Government agencies 62,690 67.682 60,426
Mortgage-backed securities 3,939 1,107 1,450
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 81,779 71,965 63,584
Other debt securities 3,469 6,437 8,460
Other securities 2,023 - -
Total securities $ 153,900 $ 147,191 $ 133920
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The following tabie sets forth the maturities of securities al December 31, 2007 and the average yields of such securities. Actual
maturities may differ from contractual maturities of mortgage-backed securities because the mortgages underlying the securities
may be called or prepaid with or without penalty. Therefore, these securities are not included in the maturity categories noted
below as of December 31, 2007. Also, the securities labeled “Other securitics™ in the table above are equity securities of a
government-sponsored agency authorized to make loans and loan guarantees and have no maturity date. Therefore they are not
included in the maturity categories below as of December 31, 2007,

State and
U.S. Government Political Other Debt
Agencies Subdivisions Securities Total

(in thousands of dollars)
Available-for-sale
Due in one year or less:
Amount $19,763 $3,779 $3,022 526,564
Yield 4,32% 4.33% 5.34% 4.44%

Due after one year through

five years:
Amount $38,110 334,150 $447 $72,707
Yield 5.20% 4.58% 5.40% 491%

Due after five years through

ten years:
Amount $4.817 341,032 to $45,849
Yield 5.18% 5.06% 0.00% 5.07%

Due after ten years:
Amount $0 $2,818 $0 $2,818
Yield 0.00% 5.47% 0.00% 5.47%

The above table shows yiclds on the tax-exempt obligations to be computed on a taxable equivalent basis.

Total average securities increased by $15.9 million, or 11.1%, to $159.2 million during 2007 as compared to $143.3 million for
2006. Average non-taxable securities increased by $8.5 million, or 12.7%, while average taxable securities increased by $7.4
million, or 9.6%, to account for the overall increase in average investments, The increase in total average securities during 2007
was primarily a result of higher average deposit growth as compared to average loan growth in 2007. Total average securities
increased by $8.2 million, or 6.1%, to $143.3 million during 2006 as compared to $135.1 million for 2005. Average non-taxable
securities increased by $3.2 million, or 5.1%, while average taxablc securities increased by $5.0 million, or 7.0%, to account for
the overall increase in average investments. The increase in total average securities during 2006 was primarily a result of higher
deposit growth than loan growth in 2006.

During 2007, the Corporation saw an improvement in the market value of its investment securities portfelio. There was an
unrealized gain on securities, net of tax, of $393,000 at December 31, 2007 as compared to an unrealized loss on securities, net of
tax, of $630,000 at December 31, 2006. The primary cause for unrealized gains and losses within the portfolio at each year-end is
the impact movements in market rates have had in comparison to the underlying yields on these securities. Market interest rates
declined during 2007, causing the investments held by the Corporation to increase in market value at Deemeber 31, 2007 as
compared to December 31, 2006.

DEPQOSITS

The Corporation’s primary source of funds is customer deposits, including certificates of deposits in excess of $100,000. Average
deposits increased by $35.5 million, or 8.7%, to $445.0 million in 2007, by $20.4 million, or 5.3%, to $409.5 million in 2006, and
by $15.6 million, or 4.2%, to $389.1 million in 2005. Although the Corporation experienced a 3.3% growth in average non-
interest bearing deposits in 2007 as compared to 2006, much of the dollar growth in deposits experienced by the Corporation in
2007 was in accounts that are interest sensitive, especially time deposits as rates remained above recent historical levels for the
first nine months of 2007 prior to rate reductions announced by the Federal Open Market Committee of the Federal Reserve.
Average time deposits increased $36.4 million in 2007, $25.2 million in 2006 and $35.0 million in 2005 as compared to the
previous year.
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The average amount of deposits for the periods indicated is summarized in the following table:

For the vears ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate

{in thousands of dollars, except percents)
Non-interest bearing

demand deposits g 58,433 0.00% § 56,553 0.00% § 52,225 0.00%
Interest bearing

demand deposits 36,708 1.39% 33,289 111% 32,272 0.97%
Savings deposits 63,334 2.21% 69,500 2.04% 79,606 1.62%
Time deposits of

$100,000 or more 159,941 5.12% 137,747 4.51% 120,636 3.44%
Other time deposits 126,625 5.06% 112,456 4.30% 104,328 3.23%
Total interest bearing

deposits 386,608 4.27% 352,992 3.64% 336,842 2.71%
Total deposits § 445,041 $ 409,545 $ 389,067

Remaining maturities of time certificates of deposits of $100,000 or more outstanding at December 31, 2007 are summarized as
follows (in thousands of dollars):

3 months or less 3 38,141
Over 3 months through 6 months 76,461
Over 6 months through 12 months 37,972
Over | year 25,466

Total $ 178,040

Other funds were invested in other earning assets such as federal funds at minimum tevels necessary for operating nceds and to
maintain adequate liquidity. A significant amount of the Corporation’s deposits are time deposits greater than $100,000. A
significant percentage of these time deposits mature within one year. [f the Corporation is unable to retain these deposits at their
maturity it may be required to find alternate sources of funds to fund any future loan growth, which may be more costly than these
deposits and may as such negatively affect the Corporation’s net interest margin. The Corporation does not currently expect that
a material amount of these deposits will be withdrawn at maturity.

OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Neither the Corporation nor the Bank have historically incurred off-balance sheet obligations through the use of, or investment in,
off-balance sheet derivative financial instruments of structured finance or special purpose entities organized as corporations,
partnerships or limited liability companics or trusts. However, the Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet
risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. The following table summarizes the Bank’s
involvement in financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk as of December 31:

Amount
2007 2006 2005
(in thousands of dollars)
Commitments to extend credit $ 59,532 $ 53,909 $ 34,959
Standby letters of credit 1,280 1,657 1,306
Mortgage loans sold with repurchase
requirements outstanding 5,775 7,059 6,775

LIQUIDITY AND INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY MANAGEMENT

The primary functions of asset/liability management are to assure adequate liquidity and maintain an appropriate balance between
interest sensitive carning assets and interest bearing liabilities. Liquidity management involves the ability to meet the cash flow
requirements of customers who may be either depositors wanting to withdraw funds or borrowers needing assurance that
sufficient funds will be available to meet their credit needs. Interest rate sensitivity management secks to avoid fluctuating net
interest margins and to enhance consistent growth of net interest income through periods of changing interest rates,

Marketable securities, particularly those of shorter maturities, are the principal source of asset liquidity. Securities maturing in
one year or less amounted to $26.6 million at December 31, 2007, representing 17.3% of the investment securities portfolio, a
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decrease from the 27.0% level of 2006. Management belicves that the investment securities portfolio, along with additional
sources of liquidity, including federal funds sold and maturing loans, provides the Corporation with adequate liquidity to meet its
funding needs.

The Bank also has federal funds lines with some of its correspondent banks. These lines may be drawn upon if the Bank has
short-term liquidity needs. As of December 31, 2007, the Bank had $25.0 million available under these lings. At December 31,
2007, the Bank had no federal funds purchased from these lines. The average daily federal funds purchased for 2007 equaled
$176,000 at an average interest rate of 5.30%. For 2006 the average daily federal funds purchased equaled $12,000 at an average
interest rate of 4.73%. For 2005 the average daily federal funds purchased equaled $83,000 at an average interest rate of 3.86%.

In addition to the federal funds lines, the Bank also has the capacity to borrow additional funds from the Federal Home Loan
Bank of Cincinnati that may be drawn upon for short-term or longer-term liquidity needs. At December 31, 2007, the Bank had
total borrowings of $3,640,000 and had approximately $33,413,000 of available additional borrowing capacity from the Federal
Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati.

On December 21, 2004, the Board of Directors of the Corporation approved a plan authorizing the management of the
Corporation, beginning on December 31, 2004, to repurchase up to $5,000,000 of the Corporation’s common stock from
shareholders desiring to liquidate their shares in either the open market or through privately negotiated transactions. The stock
repurchase program does not have an expiration date and unless terminated earlier by resolution of the registrant’s Board of
Directors, will expire when the registrant has repurchased shares having a value equal to the maximum amount authorized for
repurchase thereunder. As of December 31, 2007, 391,135 remained available for repurchase under this plan.

On August 21, 2007, the Board of Directors approved a new plan authorizing the management of the Corporation to repurchase
up to an additional $5,000,000 of the Corporation’s common stock from shareholders desiring to liquidate their shares in either
the open market or through privately negotiated transactions. This repurchase plan will take effect upon the purchase by the
Corporation of shares having a total dollar amount equal to $5,000,000 in the aggregate under the Corporation’s repurchase
program which was approved by the Board of Directors on December 21, 2004, with an effective date of December 31, 2004,
This new stock repurchase plan does not have an expiration date and unless terminated earlier by resolution of the Corporation’s
Board of Directors, will expire when the Corporation has repurchased shares having a value equal to $5,000,000. The
Corporation has no other programs to repurchase common stock at this time. Management does not anticipate that these plans
will reduce liquidity to unacceptable levels. See “ltem 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters
and Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securities™.

Interest rate sensitivity varies with different types of interest eaming assets and interest bearing liabilities. Overnight federal
funds, on which rates change daily, and loans which are tied to the prime rate differ considerably from long term securities and
fixed rate loans. Similarly, time deposits, especially those over $100,000, are much more interest-sensitive than are savings
accounts. At December 31, 2007, the Corporation had a total of $152.3 million in certificates of $100,000 or more which would
mature in one year or less. In addition, consumer certificates of deposits of smaller amounts mature generally in two years or less,
while money market deposit accounts mature on demand.

The Corporation has certain contractual obligations at December 31, 2007 as summarized in the table below.

Payments due by period

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total | year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
(In thousands of dollars)
Long-Term Debt Obligations $ 3,640 5 248 S 846 s 1,355 3 1,191
Operating Lease Obligations 492 30 201 211 -
Total 3 4,132 3 328 3 1,047 3 1,566 § 1,191

CAPITAL RESOURCES, CAPITAL AND DIVIDENDS

Regulatory requirements place certain constraints on the Corporation’s capital. In order to maintain appropriate ratios of equity to
total assets, a corresponding level of capital growth must be achieved. Growth in total average assets was 8.7% in 2007 and 4.9%
in 2006. Average equity increased 2.3% in 2007 and increased 4.6% in 2006. The Corporation’s equity capital was $49,633,025
at December 31, 2007 as compared to $47,062,042 at December 31, 2006.

The Corporation’s equity-to-average asset ratio (excluding unrealized gain/loss on investment securities) was 9.7% in 2007, as
compared to 10.1% for 2006. Management belicves that the Corporation’s 2007 earnings were sufficient to keep pace with its
growth in total assets. The Corporation expects to maintain a capital to asset ratio that reflects financial strength and conforms to
current regulatory guidelines. The ratio of dividends to net income was 51.3% in 2007, 50.0% in 2006 and 50.0% in 2005.

As of December 31, 2007, the authorized number of common shares was 10 million shares, with 1,546,551 shares issued and
outstanding.
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Management is not aware of any known trends, events, uncertainties or current recommendations by the regulatory authorities
that would have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s liquidity, capital resources or operations.

The Federal Reserve, the OCC and the FDIC have issued risk-based capital guidelines for U.S. banking organizations. These
guidelines provide a uniform capital framework that is sensitive to differences in risk profiles among banking companies. Under
these guidelines, total capital consists of Tier I capital {core capital, primarily shareholders’ equity) and Tier 1I capital
(supplementary capital, including certain qualifying debt instruments and the loan loss reserve). Assets are assigned risk weights
ranging from 0% to 100% depending on the level of credit risk normally associated with such assets. Off-balance sheet itemns
(such as commitments to make loans) are also included in assets through the use of conversion factors established by the
regulators and are assigned risk weights in the same manner as on-balance sheet items. Banking institutions were expected to
achieve a Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets ratio of at least 4.00%, a total capital (Tier I plus Tier II) to risk-weighted assets
ratio of at lcast 8.00%, and a Tier I capital to total assets ratio (leverage ratio) of at least 4.00%. As of December 31, 2007, the
Corporation and the Bank, had ratios exceeding the regulatory requirements to be classified as “well capitalized,” the highest
regulatory capital rating. The Corporation’s and the Bank’s ratios are illustrated below.

To Be Well Capitalized

Required Under Prompt
For Capatal Corrective Action
Actual Adequacy Purposes Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2007
Total Capital to risk weighted assets
FPNC § 52,759 13.96% $ 30226 > 8.00% N/A
FNB 51,862 13.72 30,222 > 8.00 37,778 > 10.00%
Tier 1 (Core) Capital to risk weighted assets
FPNC 49,215 13.03 15,113 > 4.00 N/A
FNB 48,318 12.79 15111 > 4.00 22667 = 6.00
Tier I {Core) Capital 1o average quarterly assets
FPNC 49,215 9.49 20,742 > 4.00 N/A
FNB 48,318 932 20,740 > 4.00 25925 > 5.00
As of December 31, 2006
Total Capital to risk weighted assets
FPNC $ 51,207 15.26% $ 26844 > 8.00% N/A
FNB 50,612 15.09 26,840 > 8.00 33,550 = 10.00
Tier I (Core) Capital to risk weighted assets
FPNC 47,657 14.20 13,422 > 4,00 N/A
FNB 47,062 14.03 13,420 > 4.00 20,130 > 6.00
Tier | (Core) Capital to average quarterly assets
FPNC 47,657 9.99 19,089 > 4.00 N/A
FNB 47,062 9.86 19,087 = 4.00 231,859 > 5.00

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In February 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS™) No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments (SFAS No. 155), which permits fair value
remeasurement for hybrid financial instruments that contain an embedded derivative that otherwise would require bifurcation.
Additionally, SFAS No. 155 clarifies the accounting guidance for beneficial interests in securitizations. Under SFAS No. 155, all
beneficial interests in a securitization will require an assessment in accordance with SFAS No. 133 Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities to determine if an embedded derivative exists within the instrument. In January 2007, the
FASB issued Derivatives Implementation Group Issue B40, Application of Paragraph 13(b} to Securitized Interests in
Prepayable Financial Assets (DIG Issue B40). DIG Issue B40 provides an exemption from the embedded derivative test of
paragraph 13(b) of SFAS No. 133 for instruments that would otherwise require bifurcation if the test is met solely because of a
prepayment feature included within the securitized interest and prepayment is not controlled by the security holder. SFAS No.
155 and DIG Issue B40 are cffective for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 155 and
DIG Issue B40 did not have a material impact on the Corporation’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Effect of Newly Issued But Not Yet Effective Accounting Standards: In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair
Value Measurements (“SFAS No. 157”). SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy about the assumptions used
to measure fair value and clarifies assumptions about risk and the effect of a restriction on the sale or use of an asset. SFAS No.
157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Corporation adopted SFAS No. 157 during 2008, and
the impact of adoption was not material.
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In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (SFAS
No. 1597). SFAS No. 159 provides companics with an option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value and
establishes presentation and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between compantes that choose different
measurement attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 159 is effective for the Corporation on January 1,
2008. The Corporation does not expect the impact of SFAS No. 159 to be malerial.

In September 2006, the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force finalized lssuc No. 06-4, Accounting for Deferred Compensation and
Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements. This issue requires that a liability be
recorded during the service period when a split-dollar life insurance agreement continues after participants’ employment or
retirement.  The required accrued liability will be based on either the post-employment benefit cost for the continuing life
insurance or based on the future death benefit depending on the contractual terms of the underlying agreement. This issue is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007. The Corporation adopted this issue during 2008 and the impact of
adoption was not material.

On November 5, 2007, the SEC issucd Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 109, Wrinten Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair Value
through Earnings (“SAB 1097). Previously, SAB 105, Application of Accounting Principles to Loan Commitments, stated that in
measuring the fair value of a derivative loan commitment, a company should not incorporate the expected net future cash flows
related to the associated servicing of the loan. SAB 109 supersedes SAB 105 and indicates that the expected net future cash flows
related to the associated servicing of the loan should be included in measuring fair value for all written loan commitments that are
accounted for at fair value through earnings. SAB 105 also indicated that internally-developed intangible assets should not be
recorded as part of the fair value of a derivative loan commitment, and SAB 109 retains that view. SAB 109 is effective for
derivative loan commitments issued or modified in fiscal quarters beginning after December 15, 2007. The Corporation does not
expect the impact of this standard to be material.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

The Corporation’s primary place of exposure to market risk is interest rate volatility of its loan portfolio, investment portfolio and
interesi-bearing deposit liabilities. Fluctuations in interest rates ultimately impact both the level of income and expense recorded
on a large portion of the Corporation’s assets and liabilities, and the market value of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities, other than those which possess a short term to maturity.

Simulation modeling is used to evaluate both the level of interest rate sensitivity as well as potential balance sheet strategies.
Important elements in this modeling process include the mix of floating rate versus fixed rate asscts and liabilities, the
repricing/maturing volumes and rates of the existing balance sheet, and assumptions regarding future velumes, maturity patterns
and pricing under varying interest rate scenarios. As of December 31, 2007, a +200 basis point rate shock is estimated to decrease
net interest income approximately $441,000, or 2.7%, as compared to rates remaining stable over the next 12 months, This is
within the Bank’s Asset/Liability policy limit of -9.0%. Also, a +200 basis point rate shock was forecasted to decrease the current
present value of the Bank’s equity by 1.8%, well within the policy limits of -25.0%. In addition, a -200 basis point rate shock is
estimated to decrease the current present value of the Bank’s equity by 2.0% and would decrease net interest income an estimated
$333,000, or 2.0%, over the next twelve months, as compared to rates remaining stable, both within policy guidelines. This
simulation analysis assumes that NOW and savings accounts have a lower correlation to changes in market interest rates than do
loans, securities and time deposits. The simulation analysis takes into account the call features of certain securities based upon
the rate shock, as well as estimated prepayments on loans. The simulation analysis assumes no change in the Bank’s
asset/liability composition due to the inherent uncertainties of specific conditions and corresponding actions of management,

More about market risk is included in [tem 7-"Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Liquidity and Interest Rate Sensitivity
Management.” All market risk sensitive instruments described within that section have been entered into by the Corporation for
purposes other than trading, The Corporation does not hold market risk sensitive instruments for trading purposes. The
Corporation is not subject to any foreign currency exchange or commodity price risk.
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The following table provides information about the Corporation’s financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in interest
rates as of December 31, 2007.

Expected Maturity Date for year ending December 31, 2007
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter Total  Fair Value
(in thousands of dollars)

Interest-sensitive assels:

Loans:
Variable rate $32,745 $11,214 $ 7,352 $ 1,756 § 3317 $30,500 586,884 $87,273
Average interest rate 7.93% 791% 7.62% 7.69% 7.79% 7.81% 7.85%
Fixed rate 103,288 40,467 50,782 12,705 22,832 4,672 234,746 234,876
Average interest rate 8.30% 8.32% 8.33% 8.61% 7191% 6.78% 8.26%
Securities 50,864 16,789 18,519 9,199 7,887 48,619 151,877 151,877
Average interest rate 5.03% 5.03% 5.15% 4.87% 5.08% 5.27% 5.11%
Federal funds sold 16,069 - - - - - 16,069 16,069
Average interest rate 4.23% 423%

Interest-sensitive liabilities:
Interest-bearing deposits:

Variable rate 98,092 888 - - - - 98,980 98,980
Average interest rate 1.81% 4.60% 1.83%
Fixed rate 273,992 18,623 14,158 980 2,973 3 310,730 312,519
Average interest rate 5.02% 4.67% 5.13% 4.89% 5.29% 5.50% 5.01%
Securities sold under
repurchase agreement 1,726 - - - - - 1,726 1,726
Average interest rate 3.55% 3.55%
Long-term borrowings 248 613 234 219 1,136 1,190 3,640 3,760
Average interest rate 5.59% 4.90% 5.65% 5.64% 5.05% 5.17% 5.18%

U.S. Government agency securitics in the above table with call features are shown as maturing on the call date if they are likely to
be called in the current interest rate environment.

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
REPURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Common stock of First Pulaski National Corporation is not traded through an organized exchange but is traded between local
individuals. As such, price quotations are not available on Nasdag or any other quotation service. The following trading prices
for 2007 and 2006 represent trades of which the Corporation was aware and do not necessarily include all trading transactions for
the period and may not necessarily reflect actual stock values.

Trading Prices Dividends Paid
1st Quarter, 2007 $55.00 - 55.00 $0.45
2nd Quarter, 2007 $55.00 - 55.00 $0.45
3rd Quarter, 2007 $55.00- 55.00 $0.45
4th Quarter, 2007 $55.00 - 55.00 $0.45
Total Annual Dividend, 2007 $1.80
1st Quarter, 2006 $50.00 - 50.00 $0.41
2nd Quarter, 2006 $50.00 - 50.00 $0.41
3rd Quarter, 2006 $50.00 - 50.00 $0.41
4th Quarter, 2006 $50.00 - 55.00 $0.45
Total Annual Dividend, 2006 $1.68

There were approximately 1,499 sharcholders of record of the Corporation’s common stock as of February 29, 2008.
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The Corporation reviews its dividend policy at least annually. The amount of the dividend, while in the Corporation’s sole
discretion, depends in part upon the performance of First National. The Corporation’s ability to pay dividends is restricted by
federal laws and regulations applicable to bank holding companies and by Tennessee laws relating to the payment of dividends by
Tenncssee corporations. Because substantially all operations are conducted through its subsidiarics, the Corporation’s ability to
pay dividends also depends on the ability of the subsidiaries to pay dividends to the Corporation. The ability of First National to
pay cash dividends to the Corporation is restricted by applicable regulations of the OCC and the FDIC. For a more detailed
discussion of these limitations see “Item 1. Business - Supervision and Regulation - Payment of Dividends” and Note 13 to the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The table below sets forth the number of shares repurchased by the registrant during the fourth quarter of 2007 and the average
prices at which these shares were repurchased.

Total Number

of Shares Approximate Dollar
Purchased as Value of Shares
Total Number Part of Publicly that May Yet Be
of Shares Average Price  Announced Plans Purchased Under
Purchased Paid per Share  or Programs the Plans or Programs
October 1-31, 2007 - b - - b 5,096,635
November 1-30, 2007 100 $ 55.00 100 b 5,091,135
December 1-31, 2007 - $ - - $ 5,091,135
Total 100 $ 55.00 100 $ 5,091,135

On December 21, 2004, the Board of Directors of the Corporation approved a plan authorizing the management of the
Corporation, beginning on December 31, 2004, to repurchase up to $5,000,000 of the Corporation’s common stock from
sharcholders desiring to liquidate their shares in either the open market or through privately negotiated transactions. The stock
repurchase program does not have an expiration date and, unless terminated earlier by resolution of the Corporation’s Board of
Directors, will expire when the Corporation has repurchased shares having a value equal to the maximum amount authorized for
repurchase thereunder. As of December 31, 2007, $91,135 remained available for repurchase under this plan,

On August 21, 2007, the Board of Directors approved a new plan authorizing the management of the Corporation to repurchase
up to an additional $5,000,000 of the Corporation’s common stock from sharcholders desiring to liquidate their shares in either
the open market or through privately negotiated transactions. This repurchase plan will take effect upon the purchase by the
Corporation of shares having a total dollar amount equal to $5,000,000 in the aggregate under the Corporation’s repurchase
program which was approved by the Board of Directors on December 21, 2004, with an effective date of December 31, 2004,
This new stock repurchase plan does not have an expiration date and unless terminated earlier by resolution of the Corporation’s
Board of Directors, will expire when the Corporation has repurchased shares having a value equal to $5,000,000. The
Corporation has no other programs to repurchase common stock at this time.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The table below contains selected financial data for the Corporation for the last five years. Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements which follows shows figures for basic eamings per share and gives effect to dilutive stock options in determining
diluted earnings per share. Total average cquity and total average assets exclude unrealized gains or losses on investment
securities,

For Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Interest income $ 33499 § 28937 § 25319 § 23217 § 23,393
Interest expense 16,777 13,081 9,371 6,589 6,881
Net interest income 16,722 15,856 15,548 16,628 16,512
Loan loss provision 261 175 601 664 1,520
Non-interest income 4,245 4,112 3,944 3,490 4,169
Non-interest expense 13,392 12,649 12,261 12,121 11,946
Income before income tax 7,314 7,144 7,030 7,333 7,215
Net income 5,453 5,279 5,258 5,328 5,010
Total assets $ 529941 $ 484,088 § 450393 § 426929 § 418428
Loans, net of unearned income 321,630 280,816 272,948 255,824 228,303
Securities 153,900 147,191 133,920 136,464 159,907
Deposits 469,008 426,475 397,412 373,401 362,591
Per Share Data;

Net Income-Basic $ 351 % 336 § 329 % 324 § 3.05

Net Income-Diluted 3.50 3.35 3.28 3.22 3.03

Cash dividends paid 1.80 1.68 1.65 1.65 1.65
Total average cquity $ 48629 $ 47047 § 45685 § 45527 § 42,934
Total average assets 504,385 465,446 442 729 426,067 400,811
Total year-end assets 529,941 484,088 450,393 426,929 418,428
Total long-term debt 3,640 3,874 4,096 4,335 4,640
Ratios

Avg equity to avg assets 9.64% 10.11% 10.32% 10.69% 10.71%

Return on average equity 11.21% 11.22% 11.51% 11.70% 11.67%

Return on average assets 1.08% 1.13% 1.19% 1.25% 1.25%

Dividend payout ratio 51.28% 49.97% 50.02% 50.99% 54.23%

The basic earnings per share data and the diluted eamings per share data in the above table are based on the following weighted
average number of shares outstanding:

For Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Basic 1,552,998 1,572,535 1,596,695 1,646,422 1,644,008
Diluted 1,558,919 1,578,021 1,603,908 1,655,415 1,653,943
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COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

Set forth below is a graph comparing the annual change in the cumulative total sharchoider return on the Company’s Common
Stock against the cumulative total return of the NASDAQ Index and the SNL Bank Index, for the period of five years beginning
December 31, 2002 and ended December 31, 2007.

The following Performance Graph shall not be deemed incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating by
reference the Proxy Statement into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act except to the extent that the
Company specifically incorporates this information by reference, and shali not otherwisc be deemed filed under such acts.
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